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March 2013

Dear Fellow Shareholder

Belo Corp.s financial performance in 2012 benefitted from record-setting political

and Olympics revenue along with continued significant growth in our digital

operations Generating approximately $140 million in free cash flow during the year

we were able to enhance our return to shareholders and at the same time substantially

reduce debt

The Companys operating results were highlighted by 10 percent increase in total

revenue fueled by record political revenue of $61 million 16 percent increase in

our largest advertising category automotive and double-digit increases in Internet

advertising and retransmission revenue Combined Internet advertising and

retransmission revenue totaled $113 million in 2012 accounting for 16 percent of the

Companys $715 million in total revenue

Combined station and corporate operating costs grew just percent in 2012 resulting

in 41 percent station-adjusted EBITDA margin the highest margin our stations have

produced since 2006

Belos free cash flow enabled the Company to reduce debt by $154 million during the

year substantial portion of this reduction occurred in November when we

redeemed our 6.75 percent May 2013 Senior Notes in net present value positive

transaction We also used available cash to pay $0.25 special dividend in the fourth

quarter When including the Companys regular quarterly dividends the Company

returned $56 million to shareholders during 2012

The exemplary journalism of Belos television stations was recognized with some of

the industrys most coveted awards Belo stations received five Edward Murrow

Awards and one George Foster Peabody Award in 2012 Belos television stations

also continued to enjoy strong ratings finishing or sign-on to sign-off in 11 of

our 15 markets for the November 2012 ratings period with comparable performance

in our locally-produced news programs

Continued
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In 2013 it will be difficult for broadcasters to replace the very significant political

revenue realized in 2012 However with continued strength in the automotive

category we believe that core spot revenue will grow in 2013 with the level of

growth largely dependent upon the strength of the U.S economy

Belo Corp remains focused on growing non-spot revenue sources including

retransmission revenue advertising revenue related to our stations websites and

revenue associated with our other digital initiatives Retransmission revenue and

Internet revenue should grow at double-digit rates in 2013

We remain alert to digital investments and opportunities in the traditional television

space Belo will continue to evolve in the changing media landscape and we believe

our market-leading television stations websites and other ventures are well

positioned for success in 2013 and beyond The strategic priorities weve put in place

emphasize using all of Belos distribution platforms to build audiences and strengthen

our local market leadership

As always my colleagues and are grateful for the continued support of our

shareholders directors and fellow employees

iLu4

Dunia Shive

President and Chief Executive Officer
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PART

Item Business

Belo Corp Belo or the Company Delaware corporation began as Texas newspaper company in 1842 and

today is one of the nations largest publicly-traded pure-play television companies The Company owns 20 television

stations nine in the top 25 U.S markets that reach more than 14 percent of U.S television households including

ABC CBS NBC FOX CW and MyNetwork TV MNTV affiliates and their associated websites in 15 markets across

the United States The Company also has three local and two regional news channels

The Company believes the success of its media franchises is built upon providing
the highest quality local and

regional news entertainment programming and service to the communities in which they operate These principles

have built durable relationships with viewers advertisers and online users and have guided Belos success

Overview

The Companys television broadcasting operations began in 1950 with the acquisition of WFAA-TV in Dallas/Fort

Worth shortly after the station began operations Through various subsequent transactions Belo acquired 19 addi

tional television stations in 14 markets across the United States bringing the total owned television stations to 20

Belo also has services agreement with the owner and
operator

of KFWD-TV licensed to Fort Worth Texas Begin

ning in February 2012 the Companys Tucson Arizona stations are operated under an agreement with third party

for certain shared services

Belo has six stations in the 13 largest U.S markets and 13 stations in the 50 largest U.S markets Belos stations are

concentrated primarily in three regions Texas the Northwest and Arizona Six of the Companys stations are

located in the following four major metropolitan areas in the United States

ABC affiliate WFAA-TV in Dallas/Fort Worth

CBS affiliate KHOU-TV in Houston

NBC affiliate KING-TV and independent KONG-TV in Seattle/Tacoma and

Independent KTVK and The CW Network CW affiliate KASW-TV in Phoenix

Belos television stations have been recognized with numerous local state and national awards for outstanding news

coverage
and community service Since 1957 Belos television stations have garnered 29 Alfred duPont-Columbia

Awards 25 George Foster Peabody Awards and 54 Edward Murrow Awards the industrys most prestigious

honors WFAA-TV Belos Dallas/Fort Worth station made history in 2009 as the only local television station to ever

receive the prestigious Alfred duPont-Columbia University Gold Baton award for its ongoing commitment to out

standing investigative reporting in public service WFAAs award was also the first Gold Baton award given since

2003
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The following table sets forth information for the Companys television stations and regional news channels and

their markets as of December 31 2012

Number of

Station/ Year Belo Commercial

Market News Acquired/ Network Stations

Market Rankl Channel Started Affiliation in Market2

Dallas/Fort Worth WFAA 1950 ABC 16

Dallas/Fort Worth TXCN 1999 N/A N/A
Houston 10 KHOU 1984 CBS 15

Seattle/Tacoma 12 KING 1997 NBC 13

Seattle/Tacoma 12 KONG 2000 IND 13

Seattle/Tacoma 12 NWCN 1997 N/A N/A
Phoenix3 13 KTVK 1999 IND 13

Phoenix 13 KASW 2000 CW 13

St Louis 21 KMOV 1997 CBS

Portland4 22 KGW 1997 NBC
Charlotte 25 WCNC 1997 NBC
San Antonio 36 KENS 1997 CBS 10

Hampton/Norfolk 44 WVEC 1984 ABC
Austin 45 KVUE 1999 ABC
Louisville 48 WHAS 1997 ABC
New Orleans5 51 WWL 1994 CBS

New Orleans6 51 WTUPL 2007 MNTV
Tucson 70 KMSB 1997 FOX
Tucson 70 KTTU 2002 MNTV
Spokane 73 KREM 1997 CBS

Spokane 73 KSKN 2001 CW
Boise78 111 KTVB 1997 NBC

Market rank is based on the relative size of the television market Designated Market Area DMA among the 210 DMAs generally recognized in the

United States based on the September 2012 Nielsen Media Research report

Represents the number of commercial television stations both VHF and UI-IF broadcasting in the market excltiding public stations low power broad

cast stations and cable channels

KT\TK also produces 3TV 24/7 24-hour daily local news and weather channel

The Company also owns KGWZ-LD low power television station in Portland Oregon

WWI also produces Newswatch on Channel 15 24-hour daily local news and weather channel

The Company also owns wBxN-c.A Class television station in New Orleans 1ouisiana

The Company also owns KTFT-1.1 NBC low power television station in Twin Falls Idaho

KTVB also produces 24/7 Newschannel 24-hour daily local news and weather channel

The principal source of revenue for Belos television stations is the sale of airtime to local regional and national

advertisers Generally rates for national and local spot advertising sold by the Company are determined by each sta

tion and the station receives all of the revenues net of agency commissions for that advertising Rates are influ

enced by the demand for advertising time This demand is influenced by variety of factors including the size and

demographics of the local population the concentration of retail stores local economic conditions in general and

the popularity of the stations programming In 2012 82.0 percent of the Companys total revenues were derived

from
spot advertising The largest percentage

of
spot advertising revenues was in the automotive category which in

2012 accounted for 23.1 percent
of

spot revenues

The Companys other sources of revenue primarily include retransmission revenue and interactive revenue Pur

suant to Federal Communications Commission FCC rules every three years local television station must elect to

either require cable and/or direct broadcast satellite operators to carry the stations signal or enter into

retransmission consent negotiations for
carriage At present Belo has retransmission consent agreements with the

majority of cable operators and the primary satellite providers for carriage of its television stations and four of its five

news channels with some agreements having terms of more than three years The Company has retransmission

agreements with several major telecommunications companies

Revenues for the Companys interactive media are derived principally from advertising on the Companys station

websites and related mobile device
applications Websites of each of the Companys television stations provide
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consumers with news and information as well as variety of other products and services Belo obtains immediate

feedback through online communication with its audience which allows the Company to tailor the way in which it

delivers news and information to serve the needs of its audiences According to fourth quarter 2012 .comScore

Ratings the Company has eight of the top 50 visited local television-affiliated websites in the U.S

The Company has balanced portfolio of broadcast network-affiliated stations with four ABC affiliates five CBS

affiliates and four NBC affiliates and at least one large-market station associated with each network As such Belos

revenue streams are not significantly affected by which broadcast network leads in the primetime ratings Belo also

owns two independent IND stations two CW affiliates two MNTV affiliates and one FOX affiliate

The Company has network affiliation agreements with ABC CBS NBC FOX CW and MNTV The Companys

network affiliation agreements generally provide the station with the exclusive right to broadcast over the air in its

local service area all programs transmitted by the network with which the station is affiliated As
part

of these agree

ments the network has the right to sell most of the advertising time during such broadcasts and has historically paid

the Company cash compensation In the years ended December 31 2010 and 2011 some of the Companys affili

ation agreements included network compensation totaling $12.5 million and $5.5 million respectively Beginning in

2012 the Company no longer received cash payments for network compensation As affiliation agreements renew

cash payments to the networks were included in these affiliation agreements for compensation related to program

ming provided by such networks The Companys agreements provide for payments to certain networks and one

additional agreement is expected to include payments to the applicable network beginning in 2013 Cash payments

for reverse compensation to networks are included in programming expense

The Company also has two regional news channels Texas Cable News TXCN in Dallas/Fort Worth Texas and

Northwest Cable News NWCN in Seattle/Tacoma Washington and three local news channels 24/7 NewsChannel

in Boise Idaho NewsWatch on Channel 15 in New Orleans Louisiana and the 3TV 24/7 news channel in Phoenix

Arizona These operations provide news coverage and certain other programming in comprehensive 24-hour day

format using the resources of the Companys television stations in Texas Washington Oregon Idaho Louisiana

and Arizona Through September 30 2012 the Company also operated through ajoint venture cable news

channel in partnership with Cox Communications and other parties that provided local news coverage in Phoenix

Arizona Arizona NewsChannel This joint venture was discontinued at September 30 2012 During 2012 approx

imately two percent
of the Companys revenues were from Belos regional cable news channels and consisted

primarily of advertising and subscriber-based fees

Subsequent to the June 2009 national transition to digital broadcasting broadcasters may multicast within their

licensed spectrum
several digital television programming streams some of which could be at lower resolution in

addition to the television stations primary programming stream The Company uses its multicasting capabilities to

provide more programming to the communities its television stations serve including news weather lifestyle and

Hispanic programming

Competition for audience share and advertising revenues at Belos television stations and cable news operations is

primarily related to programming content and advertising The four major national television networks

ABC CBS NBC and FOX are represented in each television market in which Belo owns television station

Competition for advertising sales and local viewers within each market is intense particularly among the

network-affiliated television stations Where Belo owns more than one television station or cable news operation

within region or market such businesses may compete with each other for national regional
and local advertising

and viewers Additionally the Companys competitors include other broadcast stations cable and satellite television

channels local regional and national newspapers magazines telephone and/or wireless companies radio direct

mail yellow pages the Internet and other media Advertising rates are based primarily upon programs popularity

the size of the market served the availability of alternative advertising media and the number of advertisers compet

ing for the available time

FCC Regulation

General Belos television broadcast operations are regulated by the FCC under the Communications Act of

1934 as amended Among other things the Communications Act empowers the FCC to issue renew revoke and

modify station licenses regulate stations technical operations and equipment and impose penalties for

violations of the Communications Act or FCC regulations The Communications Act prohibits the assignment of

broadcast license or the transfer of control of broadcast licensee without prior
FCC approval
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Station Licenses The FCC grants television station licenses for terms of up to eight years television license

must be renewed if the FCC finds that the station has served the public interest convenience and necessity

there have been no serious violations by the licensee of the Communications Act or the FCCs rules and regu

lations and there have been no other violations by the licensee of the Communications Act or the FCCs rules

and regulations that taken together constitute pattern of abuse License renewal applications for KI-IOU WFAA
WVEC WCNC WWL and WUPL are currently pending Under the FCCs rules license expiration date is auto

matically extended pending review and grant of the renewal application The current license expiration dates for

each of Belos television broadcast stations are listed below

August 2006 KHOU
August 2006 WFAA
October 2012 WVEC
December 2012 WCNC
June 2013 WWL WUPL
August12013 WI-lAS

February 2014 KMOV
August 2014 KENS KVUE
October 2014 KASW KMSB KTFU KTVB KTVK

February 2015 KING KONG KGW KREM KSKN

The FCC license for station KFWD in the Dallas/Fort Worth market expires August 2014 The Company pro

vides KFWD with certain services however an unaffiliated third party is the FCC licensee

Programming and Operations Rules and policies of the FCC and other federal agencies regulate certain pro

gramming practices and other areas affecting the business and operations of broadcast stations

The Childrens Television Act of 1990 limits commercial matter in childrens television programs and requires sta

tions to provide at least three hours of childrens educational programming per week on their primary digital chan

nels This requirement increases proportionally with each free video programming stream station broadcasts

simultaneously or multicasts The FCC also restricts commercialization of childrens programming including

certain promotions of other programs and displays of website addresses during childrens programming

The FCC now requires television stations to place their public files online at an FCC-hosted website that is easily

accessible to interested members of the public Among other things stations public file contains information

concerning childrens programming as well as information concerning programming that addresses issues of inter

est to the local community For network affiliates and stations in the Top 50 markets the file also contains

information concerning political advertising and related advertising rates

The FCC has increased its enforcement efforts regarding broadcast indecency and profanity over the past few
years

and the U.S Supreme Court recently upheld the FCCs ability to regulate in this area In 2006 the
statutory max

imum fine for broadcast indecency material increased from $33000 to $325000 per incident

The FCCs Equal Employment Opportunity rules impose job information dissemination recruitment doc
umentation and reporting requirements Broadcasters are subject to random audits to ensure compliance with the

Equal Employment Opportunity rules and could be sanctioned for noncompliance

Digital Television In 2009 full power television stations in the U.S transitioned from analog to digital service

All of our full power stations are broadcasting digital signal Broadcasters may either provide single DTV signal

or multicast several lower resolution DIV program streams Several of our full power stations also are using their

existing spectrum to broadcast mobile television signal Broadcasters also may use some of their spectrum to pro
vide non-broadcast ancillary services i.e subscription video data transfer or audio signals provided broad

casters pay the government fee of five percent of gross revenues received from such services

The FCC recently adopted rules and procedures regarding the digital conversion of Low Power Television LPTV
stations TV translator stations and TV booster stations and set deadline of September 2015 for these stations to

convert to digital operations

PAGE Belo Corp 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K



Cable and Satellite Transmission of Local Television Signals Under FCC regulations cable systems must

devote specified portion of their channel capacity to the carriage of the signals of local television stations Tele

vision stations may elect between must-carry rights or right to restrict or prevent cable systems
from carrying the

stations signal without the stations permission retransmission consent Stations must make this election once

every three years
and did so most recently on October 12011 All broadcast stations that made carriage decisions

on October 2011 will be bound by their decisions through the 2011-2014 cycle The FCC has established

market-specific requirement for mandatory carriage of local television stations by digital broadcast satellite DBS
operators similar to that applicable to cable systems for those markets in which DBS carrier provides any local

signal In addition the FCC has adopted rules relating to station eligibility for DBS carriage and subscriber eligibility

for receiving signals There are also specific statutory requirements relating to satellite distribution of distant net

work signals to unserved households i.e households that do not receive at least Grade signal from local

network affiliate On May 27 2010 the President signed into law the Satellite Television Extension and Localism

Act of 2010 STELA which extends the Satellite Home Viewer Extension and Reauthorization Act of 2004

SHVERA and authorizes DBS operators to deliver distant signals to unserved households through the end of 2014

In December 2010 the FCC adopted regulations to implement STELAs revisions to SHVERA On March 2011

the FCC issued Notice of Proposed Rulemaking NPRM to consider changes to the rules governing negotiation

of retransmission consent agreements The NPRM seeks comment on whether the rules should be modified to

strengthen standards for good faith negotiations ii enhance consumer notice provisions and iii eliminate

the network non-duplication and syndicated exclusivity rules among other things The FCC has not yet issued an

order on this matter

Ownership Rules The FCCs ownership rules affect the number type and location of broadcast and newspaper

properties that Belo may hold or acquire The rules now in effect limit the common ownership operation or con

trol of television stations serving the same area television and radio stations serving the same area and television

stations and daily newspapers serving the same area as well as the aggregate national audience of commonly-owned

television stations The FCCs rules also define the types of positions and interests that are considered attributable

for purposes of the ownership limits and thus also apply to certain Belo principals and investors

In addition the Communications Act prohibits direct or indirect record ownership of broadcast licensee or the

power to vote more than one-fourth of the stock of company controlling licensee from being held by aliens for

eign governments or their representatives or corporations formed under the laws of foreign countries

In 2007 the FCC adopted Report and Order that left most existing ownership restrictions in place but made

modifications to the newspaper/broadcast cross-ownership restriction number of parties appealed the FCCs

order and those appeals were consolidated in the Third Circuit In May 2010 while these appeals were pending the

FCC issued Notice of Intent NOl the first
step

in conducting comprehensive review of its broadcast owner

ship rules pursuant to statutory obligation to review the rules every
four

years to determine whether they remain

necessary in the public interest In July 2011 the Third Circuit vacated and remanded the Commissions 2007

changes to the newspaper/broadcast cross-ownership rule but upheld the FCCs retention of the remainder of its

media ownership rules NPRM in the FCCs review proceeding which also addresses issues remanded by the Third

Circuit was released in December 2011 Belo cannot predict the outcome of potential appellate litigation or FCC

action in this area

Local Television Ownership

Under existing local television ownership rules one entity may own two commercial television stations in Des

ignated Market Area DMA as long as the Grade contours of the stations do not overlap or if they do no more

than one of those stations is ranked among the top four stations in the DMA and eight independently owned full-

power stations will remain in the DMA The NPRM proposes only minor modifications to the existing rule by elimi

nating the Grade contour overlap portion of the existing rule Additionally the FCC requests comments on

whether to adopt waiver standard that would allow certain television combinations in small markets even

between top-four stations ii to consider multicasting in determining local television ownership limits and iii to

limit the ability of station owners to maintain dual network affiliations through multicasting arrangements The FCC

also seeks comments on whether local news service agreements joint sales agreements and/or shared services

agreements should be considered attributable for
purposes

of applying the media ownership rules
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Cross-Media Limits

The newspaper/broadcast cross-ownership rule generally prohibits one entity from owning both commercial

broadcast station and daily newspaper in the same community For FCC purposes the common officers directors

and five percent or greater voting shareholders of Belo and Belo are deemed to hold attributable interests in

each of the companies As result the business and conduct of one company may have the effect of limiting the

activities or strategic business alternatives available to the other company

The radio/television cross-ownership rule allows party to own one or two television stations and varying number

of radio stations within single market The FCCs 2007 decision left the newspaper/broadcast and radio/television

cross-ownership restrictions in place but provided that the FCC would evaluate newly proposed newspaper/

broadcast combinations under non-exhaustive list of four public interest factors and apply positive or negative

presumptions in specific circumstances The Third Circuit reversed and remanded the FCCs 2007 changes to the

newspaper/broadcast cross-ownership rule leaving the original prohibition in place The NPRM
proposes

rule

based largely on the FCCs 2007 decision and seeks comment on its proposal to adopt newspaper/broadcast cross-

ownership rule that would presumptively permit waivers of the newspaper/broadcast cross-ownership restrictions in

the top 20 DMAs when the television station is not ranked among the top four television stations in the DMA and at

least eight independently owned and operated major media voices remain in the DMA

National Television Station Ownership Cap

The maximum percentage of U.S households that single owner can reach through commonly owned television

stations is 39 percent and is not affected by the FCCs 2007 ownership decision The FCC made no proposal to

change this standard in the NPRM

Spectrum Matters In February 2012 Congress passed and the President signed legislation authorizing the FCC

to conduct an incentive auction in which television broadcasters could participate on voluntary basis and receive

portion of the proceeds in return for relinquishing some or all of their licensed spectrum This legislation imple

ments portion of the National Broadband Plan delivered to Congress by the FCC in March 2010 which made

recommendations regarding the reallocation of spectrum including spectrum currently allocated to television

broadcasters for use by other wireless communications services The legislation also authorized the FCC to reassign

television channels as part
of repacking process following the auction The FCC however must make all reason

able efforts to preserve
stations

coverage area and population served The FCC also is prohibited from

involuntarily relocating station from the UHF to the VHF band or from high VHF to low VHF channel The

legislation also establishes $1.75 billion fund for reimbursement of
expenses

incurred by television broadcasters in

connection with such repacking The FCC has issued NPRM proposing preliminary rule changes to allow portion

of the spectrum currently allocated to broadcasters to be repurposed for wireless broadband use and to adopt rules

to implement the incentive auction legislation Belo cannot predict the outcome of any FCC or other regulatory

action or any Congressional legislation in these matters

The foregoing does not purport to be complete summary of the Communications Act other applicable statutes or

the FCCs rules regulations and policies Proposals for additional or revised regulations and requirements are pend

ing before and are considered by Congress and federal regulatory agencies from time to time For example

attempts
have been made to modif existing television market designations to allow additional out-of-market stations

to be imported into local markets Belo cannot predict the effect of existing and proposed federal legislation regu
lations and policies on its business Also several of the foregoing matters e.g the media ownership rules are now
or may become the subject of litigation and Belo cannot predict the outcome of

any
such litigation or the effect on

its business

Employees

As of December 31 2012 the Company had approximately 2465 full-time and 231 part-time employees including

approximately 514 employees represented by various employee unions Belo believes its relations with its employees

are satisfactory
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Available Information

Belo maintains its corporate website at www.belo.com Belo makes available free of charge on www.belo.com this

Annual Report on Form 10-K the Companys Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q the Companys Current Reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to all those reports all as filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports are electronically

filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC

Item 1A Risk Factors

Sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and managements public comments and press releases from time to

time may contain forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties These statements are based

on managements current knowledge and estimates of factors affecting our business financial condition and oper

ations Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking information as actual results may

differ materially from those currently anticipated The following discussion identifies the known material factors

that may cause actual results to differ materially from expectations

Decreases in advertising spending resulting from economic downturns natural disasters war terrorism or other factors

specific to the communities we serve can adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations In

addition our revenues are subject to seasonal cyclical and other fluctuations that could adversely affect our business

financial condition and results of operations

substantial majority of our revenues are generated from the sale of local regional and national advertising Adver

tisers generally reduce their advertising spending during economic downturns so recession or economic down

turn could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations We cannot predict the timing

magnitude or duration of any
future economic downturn or subsequent recovery

Our ability to generate advertising revenues is and will continue to be affected by financial market conditions con

sumer confidence advertiser challenges and changes in the national and international economy as well as by

regional economic conditions in each of the markets in which our stations operate
We have significant concen

tration of assets in Texas the Northwest and Arizona which makes the economic condition of these regions of par

ticular consequence to our financial condition and results of operations Advertisers budgets the amounts of which

are affected by broad economic trends affect the broadcast industry in general and the revenues of individual

broadcast television stations in particular

Our advertising revenues depend upon variety of other factors specific to the communities we serve Changes in

those factors could negatively affect advertising revenues These factors include among others the size and demo

graphic characteristics of the local population the concentration of retail stores and other businesses and local

economic conditions in general In addition for the year ended December 31 2012 23.1 percent of our total spot

revenues were from the automotive industry and 12.1 percent of total spot revenues were from the retail category

The success of the automotive manufacturers and dealers and the retail industry in meeting the economic chal

lenges facing their industries will continue to affect the amount of their advertising spending which could have an

adverse effect on our revenues and results of operations

Our revenues and results of operations are subject to seasonal cyclical and other fluctuations that we expect to con

tinue In particular we typically experience fluctuations in our revenues between even and odd numbered years

During elections for various state and national offices which are primarily in even-numbered years advertising

revenues tend to increase because of political advertising in our markets Advertising revenues in odd-numbered

years
tend to be less than in even-numbered years due to the significantly

lower level of political advertising in our

markets Also since NBC has exclusive rights to broadcast the Olympics through 2020 our NBC affiliate stations

typically experience increased viewership and revenues during Olympic broadcasts which also occur in even-

numbered
years

If we are unable to respond to changes in technology and evolving industry trends our business may not be able to

compete effectively

New technologies are affecting the competitive landscape of our television stations Information delivery and pro

gramming alternatives such as cable direct satellite-to-home services pay-per-view the Internet telephone company
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services mobile devices digital video recorders video on demand and home video and entertainment systems have

fractionalized television viewing audiences and expanded the numbers and types of distribution channels for adver

tisers to access Over the past decade cable television programming services other emerging video distribution plat

forms and the Internet have captured an increasing market share while the aggregate viewership of the major

broadcast television networks has declined In addition the expansion of cable and satellite television telephone

and wireless companies the Internet and other technological changes has increased and may continue to increase

the competitive demand for programming and audiences

In addition video compression techniques now in use with direct broadcast satellites and potentially soon for cable

telephone and wireless are expected to permit greater
numbers of channels to be carried within existing band

width These compression techniques as well as other technological developments are applicable to all video deliv

ery systems including over-the-air broadcasting and have the potential to provide vastly expanded programming to

targeted audiences Reduction in the cost of creating additional channel capacity could lower entry barriers for new

channels and encourage the development of increasingly specialized niche programming resulting in more audi

ence fractionalization This ability to reach very narrowly defined audiences may alter the competitive dynamics for

advertising expenditures and competitors who target programming to such defined markets may increase competi

tion for advertising dollars If we are unable to compete with or successfully respond to these changes in technology

our advertising revenues could be reduced and developing new sources could be difficult which could adversely

affect our business financial condition and results of operations

The loss or modification of network affiliation agreements changes by the national broadcast television networks in

their respective business models and practices and the migration of network programming to cable the Internet and

other platforms could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

The non-renewal termination or material modification of our network affiliation agreements could have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations We have four stations affiliated with

ABC five stations affiliated with CBS four stations affiliated with NBC two stations affiliated with CW two stations

affiliated with MNTV and one station affiliated with FOX Each of ABC CBS and NBC generally provides our affili

ated stations with 22 hours of prime time programming per week Each of our affiliation agreements has stated

expiration date As these affiliation agreements are renewed networks are pursuing escalations in programming

payments Additionally networks increasingly require their affiliates to contribute toward payments for major sports

and event programming

In recent years the networks have streamed their programming on the Internet and other distribution platforms

and in some cases within short period of the original network programming broadcast on local television stations

including those we own Programming migration by the networks to cable the Internet and other distribution

vehicles dilutes the exclusivity and value of network programming originally broadcast by the local stations and

could adversely affect the business financial condition and results of operations of our stations

Our television businesses operate in highly competitive markets and our ability to maintain market share and generate

revenues depends on how effectively we compete with existing and new competition

Our television stations operate in highly competitive markets Our television stations compete for audiences and

advertising revenue with other broadcast and cable television stations and newspapers as well as with other media

such as magazines telephone and/or wireless companies satellite television and the Internet Many of our current

and potential competitors have greater financial marketing programming and other resources than we do and the

ability to distribute more targeted advertising Cable companies and others have developed national advertising

networks in recent years that increase the competition for national advertising

Our television stations compete for audiences and advertising revenues primarily on the basis of programming

content and distribution means and advertising rates Viewer accessibility is also becoming factor as is the inability

to measure new audiences which could impact advertising rates Advertising rates are set based upon variety of

factors including programs popularity among the advertisers target audience the number of advertisers compet

ing for the available time the size and demographic make-up of the market served and the availability of alternative

advertising avenues in the market Our ability to maintain market share and competitive advertising rates depends

in
part on audience

acceptance
of our network syndicated and local programming Changes in market demo

graphics the entry
of

competitive
stations into our markets the transition to new methods and technologies for
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distributing programming and measuring audiences such as Local People Meters the introduction of competitive

local news or other programming by cable satellite Internet telephone or wireless providers or the adoption of

competitive offerings by existing and new providers could result in lower ratings and adversely affect our business

financial condition and results of operations

Future strategic initiatives and/or acquisitions could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of

operations

We assess opportunities to increase our business and selectively invest in strategic initiatives and/or acquisitions

These opportunities can pose
various risks If we do not realize the expected benefits or operating synergies there

may be an adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

The costs of programming content may increase which could adversely affect our business financial condition and

results of operations

Programmingsyndicated network and localis significant operating cost We may be exposed to future increases

in programming costs In addition in recent years
the networks have required their affiliates to contribute increas

ing amounts toward the cost of major sports and event programming which affects our programming expense and

results of operations Acquisitions of program rights for syndicated programming are usually made two or three

years in advance and may require multi-year commitments making it difficult to predict accurately how program

will perform In addition any significant shortfall now or in the future in advertising revenue and/or the expected

popularity of the programming for which the Company has acquired rights could lead to less than expected rev

enues which could result in programming write-downs Additionally in some instances programs must be replaced

before their costs have been fully amortized resulting in write-offs These write-offs increase station operating costs

and decrease station results of operations

Regulatory changes may affect our strategy and use of broadcast spectrum and increase competition and operating

costs in our media businesses

As described in this Item 1BusinessFCC Regulation our television businesses are subject to extensive and chang

ing federal regulation For example federal regulations affect spectrum the retransmission consent process politi

cal advertising rates indecency on broadcast television and childrens programming Changes in current regulations

or the adoption of new laws and policies including those involving our spectrum use and modifications to existing

television market designations and the retransmission consent process
could affect our strategy increase competi

tion and our operating costs and adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations Among

other things the Communications Act and FCC rules and policies govern the term renewal and transfer of our tele

vision broadcasting licenses and limit certain concentrations of broadcasting control and ownership of multiple

television stations Relaxation of ownership restrictions may provide competitive advantage to those with greater

financial and other resources than we possess

In February 2012 Congress passed and the President signed legislation authorizing the FCC to conduct an incentive

auction in which television broadcasters could participate on voluntary basis and receive portion of the proceeds

in return for relinquishing some or all of their licensed spectrum This legislation implements portion of the

National Broadband Plan delivered to Congress by the FCC in March 2010 which made recommendations

regarding the reallocation of spectrum including spectrum currently allocated to television broadcasters for use by

other wireless communications services The legislation also authorized the FCC to reassign television channels as

part
of repacking process following the auction The FCC issued Notice of Proposed Rulemaking proposing

preliminary rule changes to allow portion of the spectrum currently allocated to broadcasters to be repurposed for

wireless broadband use The FCC also will need to adopt rules to implement the February 2012 legislation These

and other changes in the law governing use of the television broadcasting spectrum
could materially and adversely

affect the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

Belo cannot predict the outcome of any FCC or other regulatory action or any Congressional legislation in these

matters or the impact on our business financial condition and results of operations
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If we are unable to secure or maintain carriage of our television stations signals on favorable terms with cable oper

ators direct broadcast satellite system owners and/or telephone companies our television stations may not be able to

compete effectively

Pursuant to the FCC rules local television stations must elect every three years to either require cable operators

direct broadcast satellite
operators and/or telephone companies to carry the stations primary signals or enter

into retransmission consent negotiations for carriage At present Belo has retransmission consent agreements with

the majority of cable
operators

in its markets both satellite providers and several telephone companies If our

retransmission consent agreements are terminated or not renewed or if our broadcast signals are distributed on

materially less favorable terms than we or our competitors are able to obtain currently or if the retransmission

consent regime is materially changed or eliminated our ability to compete effectively may be adversely affected

which could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

We depend on key personnel and we may not be able to operate and grow our businesses effectively if we lose the

services of our senior management or are unable to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future

We depend on the efforts of our senior management The success of our business depends heavily on our ability to

retain our current management and to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future Competition for senior

management personnel is intense and we may not be able to retain our key personnel We have not entered into

employment agreements
with our key management personnel and we do not have key person insurance for any of

our senior management or other key personnel

We have large amount of indebtedness Access to our existing credit
facility

is dependent upon meeting certain cove

nants

We currently use portion of our operating cash flow for debt service We may borrow funds to finance capital

expenditures bond or stock repurchases dividends acquisitions or investments or to refinance debt as well as for

other purposes

In the event of more difficult operating or economic environment our level of indebtedness could for example

Reduce the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital capital expenditures bond or stock

repurchases dividends acquisitions or investments and other general corporate activities

Limit our ability to obtain additional financing in the future

Expose us to greater interest rate risk on credit facilities where interest rates vary

Impair our ability to successfully withstand downturn in our business and

Place us at disadvantage relative to our competitors

Declines in our pension plan asset values and market discount rates could adversely affect our business financial con

dition and results of operations

The Company has non-contributory qualified defined benefit pension plan covering certain employees and for

mer employees of Belo The Companys pension plan has been frozen to new participants since 2000 and benefits

under the plan have been frozen since March 2007 In certain recent years the Company like many other compa
nies experienced significant declines in investment returns on pension assets due to adverse changes in the U.S

and foreign securities markets resulting in worse-than-assumed investment returns and declines in discount rates

used to calculate pension and related liabilities The pension plan is currently underfunded and there can be no

assurance that investment returns and discount rates will not experience additional declines in the future Sig

nificant declines in pension asset investment returns and declines in discount rates could adversely affect the funded

status of the plan and our financial position

We have significant amount of intangible assets and if we are required to write down intangible assets in future

periods it would reduce net income and retained earnings

Our intangible assets principally broadcast licenses and goodwill represent 76.6 percent of our total assets as of

December 31 2012 Generally accepted accounting standards require among other things an annual impairment

testing of broadcast licenses and goodwill Any significant shortfall in future advertising revenue or adverse change
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in our cost structure could lead to decreases in the fair value of certain reporting units Such decreases could result

in an impairment and non-cash charge would be required Any such charge could be material to the Companys

results of operations

If we cannot renew our FCC broadcast licenses our broadcast operations will be impaired

Our television stations depend upon maintaining their broadcast licenses which are issued by the FCC Our broad

cast licenses expired or will expire between 2006 and 2015 although those for which the expiration date has passed

have been extended by the filing of license renewal application with the FCC and are renewable Interested par

ties may challenge renewal application The FCC has the authority to revoke licenses not renew them or renew

them with significant qualifications including renewals for less than full eight-year term Although we expect to

renew all our FCC licenses we can give no assurance that our future renewal applications will be approved or that

the renewals will not include qualifications that could adversely affect our business financial condition and results

of operations Failing to renew any
of our stations main licenses could prevent us from operating the affected sta

tions which could materially adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations If we renew

our licenses with substantial qualifications including renewing one or more of our licenses for term of less than

the full term it could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Cybersecurity risks could adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Cyber risks can result from deliberate attacks or unintentional events These incidents can include but are not lim

ited to gaining unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes
of misappropriating assets or sensitive

information corruption of data or causing operational disruption
The result of these incidents could include but

are not limited to disrupted operations misstated financial data liability for stolen assets or information increased

cybersecurity protection costs and litigation

Certain members of management directors and shareholders may face actual or potential conflicts of interest

The Company and Belo have two common directors Some members of management and directors of Belo

and Belo own both Belo common stock and Belo common stock This ownership overlap and these

common directors could create or appear to create potential conflicts of interest when Belos and Belos

management and directors face decisions that could have different implications for each company

In addition due to these existing relationships between the two companies under current law media properties

owned by Belo are considered attributable to Belo for purposes of FCC rules and regulations limiting owner

ship of multiple media properties in the same market which could limit our ability to purchase stations in

Belos newspaper markets most notably Dallas-Fort Worth Texas

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Television Station Properties

At December 31 2012 Belo owned broadcast operating facilities in the following U.S cities Austin Dallas Houston

and San Antonio Texas Seattle and Spokane Washington Phoenix and Tucson Arizona Portland Oregon Char

lotte North Carolina New Orleans Louisiana Norfolk Virginia Louisville Kentucky and Boise Idaho The

Company leases broadcast facilities for operations in St Louis Missouri Four of the Companys broadcast facilities

use primary broadcast towers that are jointly owned with another television station in the same market The Com

pany also leases broadcast towers in Tucson Arizona for the transmission of KMSB-TV and KTTU-TV The primary

broadcast towers associated with the Companys other television stations are wholly-owned by the Company

The Companys local and regional news channels are conducted from Company-owned broadcasting facilities in

Texas Washington Idaho Louisiana and Arizona
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Corporate Properties

The Company owns 17-story office building that houses its corporate offices and one parking lot in downtown

Dallas Texas

WFAA and Belo own and lease under ground lease contiguous parcels covering the land and improvements used

by WFAA and TXCN In addition WFAA has entered into an arms-length lease with The Dallas Morning News an

Belo subsidiary for the lease of certain
storage

facilities in the parking garage
located on Dallas Morning News

property

The Company has additional leasehold and other interests that are used in its activities which interests are not

material The Company believes its properties are in satisfactory condition are well maintained and are adequate

for
present operations

Item Legal Proceedings

On October 24 2006 18 former employees of The Dallas Morning News filed lawsuit against The Dallas Morning

News the Company and others in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas The plaintiffs

lawsuit mainly consisted of claims of unlawful discrimination and ERISA violations On March 28 2011 the District

Court granted defendants summary judgment and dismissed all claims OnJuly 15 2011 the plaintiffs appealed the

decision to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit On August 20 2012 the Fifth Circuit affirmed

the District Courts decision Plaintiffs time to seek review by the U.S Supreme Court has since expired Therefore

the summary judgment has been affirmed and all claims dismissed

Various legal proceedings are pending against the Company including matters relating to alleged libel and/or

defamation In the opinion of management liabilities if any arising from these other legal proceedings would not

have material adverse effect on the consolidated results of operations liquidity or financial condition of the

Company

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

None

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

The Companys authorized common equity consists of 450 million shares of common stock par value $.01 per

share The Company has two series of common stock outstanding Series and Series Shares of the two series are

identical in all
respects except as noted herein Series shares are entitled to 10 votes per

share on all matters

submitted to vote of shareholders Series shares are entitled to one vote per
share Transferability of the Series

shares is limited to family members and affiliated entities of the holder and Series shares are convertible at any

time on one-for-one basis into Series shares and upon transfer other than as described above Series shares

automatically convert into Series shares Shares of the Companys Series common stock are traded on the

New York Stock Exchange NYSE symbol BLC There is no established public trading market for shares of Series

common stock See the Consolidated Financial Statements Note 11Common and Preferred Stock
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The following table lists the high and low trading prices and the closing prices for Series common stock as

reported on the New York Stock Exchange for each of the quarterly periods in the last two years
and cash dividends

declared each quarter for both the Series and Series common stock

HIGH LOW CLOSE DIVIDENDS

2012 Fourth Quarter $8.32 $6.76 $7.67 $0.33

Third Quarter $8.33 $6.07 $7.83 $0.16

Second Quarter $7.28 $5.59 $6.44

First Quarter $9.00 $6.42 $7.17 $0.08

2011 Fourth Quarter $6.80 $4.36 $6.30 $0.05

Third Quarter $7.72 $4.69 $4.89 $0.05

Second Quarter $9.27 $6.79 $7.53 $0.05

First Quarter $8.93 $6.45 $8.81

On February 28 2013 the closing price for the Companys Series common stock as reported on the New York

Stock Exchange was $8.64 The approximate number of shareholders of record of the Series and Series com

mon stock at the close of business on such date was 523 and 216 respectively

The Credit Agreement allows the Company to pay dividends and repurchase shares up to $100 million per year as

long as the leverage ratio is less than 4.5 and the Company maintains $75 million of liquidity after
any

such payment

or repurchase is made See Item 7Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

OperationsLiquidity
and Capital ResourcesFinancing Cash Flows for additional information regarding the Credit

Agreement

For information relating to securities authorized for issuance under the Companys equity compensation plans see

Part IllItem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters of this Form 10-K

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company did not repurchase any Series or Series common stock during the quarter ended December 31

2012 See Consolidated Financial Statements Note 11Common and Preferred Stock for share repurchase plan

authorization information See Item 7Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

OperationsLiquidity and Capital ResourcesFinancing Cash Flows for additional information on the 2011 Credit

Agreement related to share repurchase covenants
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC
nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into

any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 each as amended except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such

filing

The following graph compares the annual cumulative shareholder return on an investment of $100 on

December 31 2007 in Belos Series common stock based on the market price of the Series common stock and

assuming reinvestment of dividends with the cumulative total return of similar investment in companies on

the Standard Poors 500 Stock Index and with the 2012 peer companies selected on line-of-business basis

and weighted for market capitalization The Companys peer group includes the following companies E.W Scripps

Gray TelevisionJournal Communications Inc LIN TV Corp Media General Meredith Corp Nexstar Broad

casting Group and Sinclair Broadcast Group Belo is not included in the calculation of
peer group cumulative total

shareholder return on investment
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected financial data of the Company for each of the five
years

in the period ended

December 31 2012 For more complete understanding of this selected financial data see Item 7Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
and the Consolidated Financial State

ments and the notes thereto

In thousands except per
share amounts 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Net operating revenues 714719 650142 687395 590267 733470

Pension settlement charge and contribution

reimbursements 20466 8572

Impairment charges
242144 662151

All other operating costs and expenses 485639 475968 480429 462775 529284

Total operating costs and expenses 485639 496434 471857 704919 1191435

Earnings loss from operations 229080 153708 215538 114652 457965

Other income and expense 72421 65852 76518 51479 63247

Income tax expense benefit 56929 29898 52114 57070 67042

Net earnings loss from continuing operations 99730 57958 86906 109061 454170

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax 4996

Net earnings loss 99730 57958 86906 109061 459166

Less Net loss attributable to non-controlling

interests 440

Net earnings loss attributable to Belo Corp 100170 57958 86906 109061 459166

Net earnings loss per shareBasic

Earnings loss per
share from continuing operations 0.96 0.55 0.83 1.06 4.45

Earnings loss per
share from discontinued

operationsa 0.05

Basic earnings loss per share 0.96 0.55 0.83 1.06 4.50

Net earnings loss per shareDiluted

Earnings loss per share from continuing operations 0.95 0.55 0.83 1.06 4.45

Earnings loss per
share from discontinued

operationsa
0.05

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.95 0.55 0.83 1.06 4.50

Cash dividends declared 0.57 0.15 0.075 0.30

Total assets $1499592 $1611605 $1590390 $1584461 $1849179

Long-term debt 733025 887003 897111 $1028219 $1092765

Loss from discontinued operations
includes the operations of the newspaper businesses and related assets that were spun-off to Belo in February

2008

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following information should be read in conjunction with the other sections of the Annual Report on Form 10-K including

Item 1Business Item IARisk Factors Item 6Selected Financial Data Item 7AQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about

Market Risks Item 9AControls and Procedures and the Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains number offorward-looking statements all of

which are based on our current expectations and could be affected by the uncertainties and risk factors described throughout this

filing and particularly in Item lARisk Factors

All references to earnings per
share represent diluted earnings per share

Dollars in thousands except per
share amounts

OV
Belo Delaware corporation began as Texas newspaper company in 1842 and today is one of the nations largest

publicly-traded pure-play television companies The Company owns 20 television stations nine in the top 25 U.s

markets that reach more than 14 percent of U.S television households including ABC CBS NBC FOX CW and

MyNetwork TV affiliates and their associated websites in 15 markets across the United States The Company also

has three local and two regional news channels
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The Company believes the success of its media franchises is built upon providing the highest quality local and

regional news entertainment programming and service to the communities in which they operate These principles

have built durable relationships with viewers readers advertisers and online users and have guided Belos success

The Company intends for the discussion of its 2012 and prior period financial condition and results of operations

that follows to provide information that will assist in understanding the Companys financial statements the changes

in certain key items in those statements from period to period and the primary factors that accounted for those

changes as well as how certain accounting principles policies and estimates affect the Companys financial state

ments

The principal source of the Companys revenue is from the sale of local regional and national advertising During
2012 the Company benefited from record political revenue and had significant growth in its largest industry cat

egory automotive The Companys combined station and corporate operating costs grew by two percent for the year

compared to 2011 During 2011 spot revenues excluding political spot revenues increased over 2010 despite the

uneven economy and an automotive category that was adversely affected by events in Japan during 2011 Additional

discussion regarding the Companys results of operations in 2012 as compared to 2011 and 2011 as compared to

2010 is provided below

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results of Operations

Percentage Percentage
Year ended December 31 2012 change 2011 change 2010

Net operating revenues $714719 9.9% $650142 5.4% $687395

Pension settlement charge and contribution

reimbursements NM 20466 NM 8572
Other operating costs and expenses 485639 2.0% 475968 0.9% 480429

Total operating costs and
expenses 485639 2.2% 496434 5.2% 471857

Earnings from operations 229080 49.0% 153708 28.7% 215538

Other income expense 72421 10.0% 65852 13.9% 76518

Earnings before income taxes 156659 78.3% 87856 36.8% 139020

Income tax expense 56929 90.4% 29898 42.6% 52114

Net earnings 99730 72.1% 57958 33.3% 86906

Less Net loss from noncontrolling interests 440 NM

Net earnings attributable to Belo Corp $100170 72.8% 57958 33.3% 86906

NM means nor meaningful

Net Operating Revenues

Percentage Percentage
Year ended December 31 2012 change 2011 change 2010

Spot advertising revenue $586193 10.1% $532228 7.2% $573638

Other revenue 128526 9.0% 117914 3.7% 113757

Net operating revenues $714719 9.9% $650142 5.4% $687395

Spot advertising revenue increased $53965 or 10.1 percent in the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the

year ended December 31 2011 This increase is primarily due to $51616 increase in political spot revenue Politi

cal revenues are generally higher in even-numbered years than in odd-numbered years due to elections for various

state and national offices Combined local and national spot revenue was up slightly with increases in the automo

tive travel and financial services categories offset by decreases in the entertainment and gambling restaurants

healthcare grocery and telecommunications categories Other revenue increased primarily due to an 18.8 percent

increase in retransmission revenue and 15.5 percent increase in Internet revenue The increases were partially

offset by decline of $5454 in network compensation
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Spot advertising revenue decreased $41410 or 7.2 percent
in the

year
ended December 31 2011 compared to the

year ended December 31 2010 This decrease is primarily due to $46041 decrease in political spot revenue Politi

cal revenues are generally higher in even-numbered years than in odd-numbered years due to elections for various

state and national offices Combined local and national spot revenue was up slightly with increases in the automo

tive healthcare retail and telecommunications categories offset by decreases in the entertainment and gambling

grocery and professional
services categories Other revenue increased primarily due to 20.1 percent

increase in

retransmission revenue and 12.0 percent increase in Internet revenue partially offset by lower network compensa

tion of $7005

Operating Costs and Expenses

For the year
ended December 31 2012 station salaries wages

and employee benefits increased $9487 or 4.4 per

cent primarily due to an increase of $4507 related to annual merit increases and sales commissions on higher

revenue increases in accrued performance-based bonus expense
of $2119 increases in the Companys employer

match for the Belo Savings Plan 401k plan of $1179 and an increase in expenses for workers compensation

and medical insurance of $1340 Station programming and other operating costs decreased $7178 or 3.5 percent

primarily
related to $15622 decrease in programming costs The decrease in programming costs was mostly

related to savings in syndicated programming expenses which were partially offset by less significant
increase in

programming payments to the networks The decrease in programming expense was partially offset by $2733

increase in national representation fees related to political revenue $1479 increase in repairs and maintenance

expenses $1399 increase in spending for revenue-generating
interactive initiatives

For the year ended December 31 2011 station salaries wages and employee benefits increased $4916 or 2.3 per

cent primarily due to increases in salary expense of $3535 partial reinstatement of the Companys employer match

for the Belo Savings Plan 401k plan of $2474 and higher station pension expense
of $2110 partially offset by

decreases in accrued performance-based bonuses of $4234 Station programming and other operating costs

increased $5669 or 2.8 percent primarily due to the non-cash expense
reduction in 2010 of $7037 related to

2005 Federal Communications Commission decision that allowed major wireless provider to finance the replace

ment of analog news gathering equipment with digital equipment in exchange for stations vacating the analog spec

trum earlier than required Six Belo markets converted to this digital equipment in the first half of 2010

Additionally technology costs increased $3495 advertising expense increased $3330 and interactive outside serv

ices increased $1545 These increases were partially offset by decreases in programming expense of $7691 and

national representation
fees of $2333

Corporate operating costs increased $8055 or 31.8 percent for the year ended December 31 2012 primarily due

to increases in salary expense of $1230 performance-based compensation under the long-term incentive plan of

$4701 and due to the non-cash expense
reduction in 2011 related to favorable settlement of property tax issue

Corporate operating costs decreased $11149 or 30.6
percent

for the year ended December 31 2011 primarily due

to decreases in technology support costs of $3620 lower pension expense of $3366 related to the pension split

discussed below and lower accrued performance-based bonuses of $2679

In October 2010 Belo and Belo agreed to split The Dealey Retirement Pension Plan Pension Plan into

separately-sponsored pension plans effective January 2011 Under the agreement participant benefit liabilities

and assets allocable to approximately 5100 current and former employees of Belo and its related newspaper

businesses were transferred to two new defined benefit pension plans created sponsored and managed by or on

behalf of Belo EffectiveJanuary 2011 the newA Belo plans were solely responsible for paying partic

ipant
benefits for the current and former employees of Belo and the Company is no longer responsible for

those liabilities The participant benefit liabilities and assets pertaining to current and former employees
of Belo

and its related television businesses continue to be held by the Pension Plan sponsored and managed by or on

behalf of Belo

For Belo theJanuary 2011 pension split transaction was treated as settlement under ASC 715 Under settlement

accounting
for pensions the split of the Companys Pension Plan resulted in the transfer of $238833 in Pension

Plan assets and $339799 in Pension Plan liabilities to the new plans sponsored by Belo This resulted in

reduction in the net unfunded liability of $100966 which was recorded as non-cash settlement gain and recog

nition of $129665 in actuarial losses previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss which was
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recorded as non-cash settlement charge This settlement gain and charge resulted in net non-cash settlement

charge of $28699 This charge was partially offset by final net pension contribution reimbursement of $8233
received from Belo as previously discussed For the year ended December 31 2011 the Company made con
tributions totaling $27157 to the Pension Plan related to the 2010 and 2011 plan years and Belo reimbursed

the Company $8233 related to the contributions for the 2010 plan year Belo has no further obligations to

reimburse the Company for any contributions after the 2010 plan year The combined result of all pension split set

tlement transactions in 2011 was net charge before taxes of $20466

Other income expense

Interest
expense decreased $2688 or 3.7 percent for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year

ended December 31 2011 primarily due to decreased interest costs associated with the early redemption of the

Senior Notes originally due May 2013 the 2013 Senior Notes and decreased interest costs associated with lower

variable rate debt borrowings versus the same period in 2011

Interest
expense decreased $5502 or 7.1 percent for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year

ended December 31 2010 primarily due to decreased interest costs associated with lower variable rate debt borrow

ings versus the same period in 2010 In addition commitment fees and amortization of financing costs associated

with the variable rate debt declined due to the Companys election to reduce commitments under the credit agree
ments in August 2010 In connection with the December 2011 amendment to the credit facility the Company
recognized charge to interest expense of $698 related to the write-off of prior debt issuance costs This charge

partially offset the decrease in interest expense discussed above

Other income net decreased $9257 in 2012 primarily due to $5702 charge related to the early repayment of the

2013 Senior Notes and $4467 non-cash gain realized in 2011 as described below

Other income net increased $5164 in 2011 primarily due $4467 non-cash gain realized on the settlement of

ownership of certain Dallas Texas properties previously held in limited liability companyjointly owned with

Belo

Income taxes

Income tax expense increased $27031 or 90.4 percent for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the

year ended December 31 2011 primarily due to higher pretax earnings and tax benefit in 2011 as described

below The Companys effective tax rate was 36.3 percent for the year ended December 31 2012

Income tax expense
decreased $22216 or 42.6 percent for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the

year
ended December 31 2010 primarily due to lower pretax earnings including $7143 tax benefit related to

deferred tax adjustments for the pension settlement charge and settlement of certain tax matters in 2011 The

Companys effective tax rate was 34.0 percent for the year ended December 31 2011

Net earnings attributable to Belo Corp

As result of the matters discussed above the Company recorded net earnings attributable to Belo Corp of

$100170 or $0.95 per share for 2012 compared with net earnings attributable to Belo Corp of $57958 or $0.55

per share for 2011 and net earnings attributable to Belo Corp of $86906 or $0.83 per share for 2010
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Station Adjusted EBITDA

Percentage Percentage

Year ended December 31 2012 Change 2011 Change 2010

Station Adjusted EBITDA $292576 27.0% $230308 17.2% $278146

Corporate operating costs 33393 31.8% 25338 30.6% 36487

Depreciation 30103 2.3% 30796 11.2% 34693

Pension settlement charge and contribution

reimbursements NM 20466 NM 8572

Earnings from operations $229080 49.0% $153708 28.7% $215538

NM means not meaningful

Belos management uses Station Adjusted EBITDA as the primary measure of profitability to evaluate operating

performance and to allocate capital resources and bonuses to eligible operating company employees Station

Adjusted EBITDA represents the Companys earnings from operations before interest expense income taxes

depreciation amortization impairment charges pension settlement charge and contribution reimbursements and

corporate operating costs and expenses Other income expense net is not allocated to television station earnings

from operations because it consists primarily of equity in earnings losses from investments in partnerships and

joint ventures and other non-operating income expense Station Adjusted EBITDA is common alternative meas

ure of performance used by investors financial analysts and rating agencies to evaluate financial performance

For the
year

ended December 31 2012 Station Adjusted EBITDA increased $62268 or 27.0 percent compared

with the
year

ended December 31 2011 As discussed above this increase was primarily
due to higher 2012 political

spot revenues and lower station programming and other operating costs partially offset by increases in station sal

aries wages and employee benefits For the year ended December 31 2011 Station Adjusted EBITDA decreased

$47838 or 17.2 percent compared with the year
ended December 31 2010 As discussed above this decrease was

primarily due to lower 2011 political spot revenues and increases in station salaries wages
and employee benefits

and station programming and other operating costs

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in Items and 7A and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K concerning Belos business out

look or future economic performance anticipated profitability revenues expenses capital expenditures invest

ments future financings impairments pension matters and other financial and non-financial items that are not

historical facts are forward-looking statements as the term is defined under applicable federal securities laws

Forward-looking statements are subject to risks uncertainties and other factors described throughout this filing and

particularly in Item lARisk Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those predicted in
any

such forward-looking statement Belo undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement whether as

result of new information future events or otherwise

Such risks uncertainties and factors include but are not limited to uncertainties regarding changes in capital

market conditions and prospects and other factors such as changes in advertising demand interest and discount

rates and programming and production costs changes in viewership patterns
and demography and actions by view

ership measurement services changes in the network-affiliate business model for broadcast television technological

changes and the development of new systems and devices to distribute and consume television and other audio

visual content changes in the ability to secure and in the terms of carriage of Belo programming on cable satellite

telecommunications and other program distribution methods development of Internet commerce industry cycles

changes in pricing or other actions by competitors and suppliers FCC and other regulatory tax and legal changes

including changes regarding spectrum adoption of new accounting standards or changes in existing accounting

standards by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or other accounting standard-setting bodies or authorities

the effects of Company acquisitions dispositions co-owned ventures and investments pension plan matters general

economic conditions and significant armed conflict as well as other risks detailed in Belos other public disclosures

and filings with the SEC and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Belos financial statements are based on the selection and application of accounting policies that require manage
ment to make significant estimates and assumptions The Company believes that the following are some of the more

critical accounting policies currently affecting Belos financial position and results of operations See the Con
solidated Financial Statements Note 1Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for additional information

concerning significant accounting policies

Revenue Recognition Belos principal sources of revenue are the sale of airtime on its television stations advertis

ing space on the Companys Internet websites and retransmission of its programming by cable satellite telephone

and wireless companies Broadcast revenues are recorded net of agency commissions when commercials are aired

Advertising revenues for Internet websites are recorded net of agency commissions as advertisements are displayed

on websites Retransmission revenues are recognized in the period earned

Program Rights Program rights represent the right to air various forms of first-run and existing second-run pro

gramming Program rights and the corresponding contractual obligations are recorded when the license period

begins and the programs are available for use Program rights are carried at the lower of unamortized cost or esti

mated net realizable value on program-by-program basis Program rights and the corresponding contractual

obligations are classified as current or long-term based on estimated usage and payment terms respectively Costs of

off-network syndicated programs first-run programming and feature films are amortized on straight-line basis over

the future number of showings allowed in the contract

Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment The Company reviews the carrying amount of property plant and

equipment for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable Recoverability of property and equipment is measured by comparison of the carrying amount to

the future undiscounted net cash flows the property and equipment is expected to generate Based on assessments

performed during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company did not record any impair

ment losses related to property plant and equipment

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets The Company classifies the FCC licenses apart from goodwill as sepa
rate indefinite-lived intangible assets The Companys indefinite-lived intangible assets represent FCC licenses in

markets as defined by Nielsen Media Researchs Designated Market Area report where the Companys stations

operate Goodwill is recorded by reporting unit with each reporting unit consisting of the television stations and

cable news operations within market Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are required to be tested at

least annually for impairment or between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more

likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying amount The Company measures the fair

value of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets annually as of December 31 Impairment arises when the

carrying amount of the goodwill or FCC licenses is greater than its fair value

The Company assesses qualitative factors to establish whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of report

ing unit exceeds its carrying value If the Company determines that the qualitative evaluation indicates that the

reporting unit does not meet the more likely than not criteria of its fair value exceeding its carrying value then

further quantitative analysis is required

For FCC licenses the quantitative analysis for reporting units that do not pass the qualitative evaluation consists of

comparing the calculated fair value of the market with its carrying amount The calculated fair value is determined

using discounted projected cash flow analysis that assumes that the FCC licenses are held by hypothetical start-up

stations If the calculated fair value of the FCC license exceeds its carrying amount the FCC license is not consid

ered to be impaired

For goodwill the quantitative analysis for reporting units that do not pass the qualitative evaluation uses two-step

process The first step is to identify whether potential impairment exists by comparing the calculated fair value of

reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill The calculated fair value is determined using dis

counted cash flow model that considers an estimated weighted-average cost of capital If the calculated fair value of

reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount goodwill of the reporting unit is not considered to be impaired and

the second step of the impairment test is not necessary If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the

calculated fair value second step is performed to determine the implied fair value of the goodwill of the reporting

unit by deducting the fair value of all of the individual assets and liabilities of the reporting unit from the respective

fair values of the reporting unit as whole To the extent the implied fair value of the goodwill is less than the

recorded goodwill an impairment charge is recorded for the difference
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In performing the quantitative assessments of the Companys goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets the

Company must make assumptions regarding future cash flow projections and other factors to estimate the fair value

of the reporting units and intangible assets Estimates of fair value are subjective
in nature involve uncertainties and

matters of significant judgment and are made at specific point in time Thus changes in key assumptions from

period to period could significantly affect the estimates of fair value Significant assumptions used in the fair value

estimates include projected revenues and related growth rates over time and in perpetuity for 2012 perpetuity

growth rates used in the quantitative analysis ranged from 1.7% to 3.0% forecasted operating margins estimated

tax rates capital expenditures required working capital needs and an appropriate risk-adjusted weighted-average

cost of capital for 2012 the weighted-average cost of capital used was 9.0% Additionally for the Companys FCC

licenses significant assumptions include costs and time associated with start-up initial capital investments and fore

casts related to overall market performance over time

Fair value estimates are inherently sensitive particularly with respect to FCC licenses At December 31 2012 in two

of the Companys 15 markets the estimated fair value of the FCC licenses is less than 30 percent greater
than their

respective carrying values with the closest market having an excess of estimated fair value over carrying value of 24

percent significant reduction in the fair value of the FCC licenses in either of these two markets could result in an

impairment charge As of December 31 2012 the carrying value of the FCC licenses in those two markets represents

approximately $231415 of the Companys total $725399 of FCC licenses If some or all of the aforementioned key

estimates or assumptions change in the future the Company may be required to record impairment charges related

to its indefinite-lived intangible assets

As of December 31 2012 goodwill at the Companys reporting units is somewhat less sensitive as collectively report

ing units with estimated fair values exceeding their carrying values by more than 30 percent represent over

88 percent of the total investments in goodwill and impairment charges related to FCC licenses that are recorded in

any period will reduce the carrying values of those applicable reporting units prior to the goodwill impairment

evaluation In the Companys closest market having excess of estimated fair value over carrying values reporting

unit fair value exceeded carrying value by approximately 23 percent
If some or all of the aforementioned key esti

mates or assumptions change in the future the Company may be required to record impairment charges related to

its goodwill

Based upon the assessments performed as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the estimated fair value of all of

the Companys 15 reporting units exceeded their carrying amounts Additionally based on assessments performed

as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the estimated fair value of the Companys FCC licenses exceeded their

carrying amounts and no impairments of FCC licenses were identified

Contingencies Belo is involved in certain claims and litigation
related to its operations In the opinion of

management liabilities if any arising from these claims and litigation should not have material adverse effect on

Belos consolidated financial position liquidity or results of operations The Company is required to assess the like

lihood of any
adverse judgments or outcomes to these matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses

determination of the amount of reserves required if any for these contingencies is made after careful analysis of

each individual matter The required reserves may change in the future due to new developments in each matter or

changes in approach such as change in settlement strategy
in dealing with these matters

Share-Based Compensation The Company records compensation expense
related to its share-based compensation

awards according to ASC 718 The Company records compensation expense
related to its options using the fair

value as of the date of grant as calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton method The Company records the com

pensation expense related to its restricted stock units RSUs using the fair value as of the date of grant part of

the RSUs are settled in cash and therefore the associated liabilities are adjusted to market at the end of each report

ing period

Employee Benefits Belo is self-insured for employee-related health care benefits with certain limits in place third-

party administrator is used to process all claims Belos employee health insurance liability is based on the Compa

nys historical claims experience and is developed
from actuarial valuations Belos reserves associated with the

exposure to the self-insured liabilities are monitored by management for adequacy However actual amounts could

vary significantly from such estimates

Pension Benefits Belos pension costs and obligations are calculated using various actuarial assumptions and

methodologies as prescribed under ASC 715 To assist in developing these assumptions and methodologies Belo
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uses the services of an independent consulting firm To determine the benefit obligations the assumptions the

Company uses include but are not limited to the selection of the discount rate In determining the discount rate

assumption of 4.10
percent the Company used measurement date of December 31 2012 and constructed port

folio of bonds to match the benefit payment stream that is projected to be paid from the Companys Pension Plan

To compute the Companys pension expense in the year ended December 31 2012 the Company used actuarial

assumptions that included discount rate and an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets The discount

rate of 4.69 percent used in this calculation was the rate used in computing the benefit obligation as of

December 31 2011 The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.0 percent is based on the weighted

average expected long-term returns for the
target allocation of plan assets as of the measurement date the end of

the year and was developed through analysis of historical market returns current market conditions and the pen
sion plan assets past experience Although the Company believes that the assumptions used are appropriate differ

ences between assumed and actual experience may affect the Companys operating results See the Consolidated

Financial Statements Note 7Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post Retirement Plans for additional information

regarding the Companys Pension Plan

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

InJuly 2012 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standard Update ASU
No 2012-02 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment ASU

20 12-02 allows companies to perform qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment testing of

indefinite-lived intangible assets is necessary Companies can first determine based on certain qualitative factors

whether it is more likely than not likelihood of more than 50 percent that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is

impaired The new standard is intended to reduce the cost and complexity of testing indefinite-lived intangible

assets for impairment The revised standard is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal

years beginning after September 30 2012 and early adoption is permitted The Company adopted this new guid

ance in the fourth quarter of 2012 when completing its annual impairment analysis The new standard did not affect

the manner in which the Company estimates fair value and did not affect the value of the Companys indefinite-

lived intangible assets

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-08 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for

Impairment ASU 2011-08 is intended to simplify goodwill impairment testing by adding qualitative review step to

assess whether quantitative impairment analysis is
necessary

Under the amended rule company will not be

required to calculate the fair value of business that contains recorded goodwill unless it concludes based on the

qualitative assessment that it is more likely than not that the fair value of that business is less than its book value If

such decline in fair value is deemed more likely than not to have occurred then the quantitative goodwill impair

ment test that exists under current GAAP must be completed otherwise goodwill is deemed to be not impaired and

no further testing is required until the next annual test date or sooner if conditions or events before that date raise

concerns of potential impairment in the business The Company adopted this new guidance in 2012 The amended

goodwill impairment guidance did not affect the manner in which the Company estimates fair value The new stan

dard is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal
years beginning after

December 15 2011 with early adoption permitted

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive Income

This ASU requires companies to present the components of net income and other comprehensive income either as

one continuous statement or as two consecutive statements It eliminates the option to present components of other

comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders
equity The standard does not change

the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income how such items are measured or when they must

be reclassified to net income This standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after

December 15 2011 The FASB subsequently deferred the effective date of certain provisions of this standard

pertaining to the reclassification of items out of accumulated other comprehensive income pending the issuance of

further guidance on that matter The Company adopted this new guidanceJanuary 2012 Because this ASU

impacts presentation only it had no effect on the Companys financial condition results of operations or cash flows
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Operating Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operations bank borrowings and term debt are Belos primary sources of liquidity Net cash

provided by operations was $189557 $81450 and $143465 in the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The 2012 operating cash flows were provided primarily by net earnings adjusted for non-cash items

receipt of $31615 federal income tax refund and routine changes in working capital partially offset by pension

contributions The 2011 operating cash flows were provided primarily by net earnings adjusted for non-cash and

pension related items and routine changes in working capital partially offset by pension
contributions The 2010

operating
cash flows were provided primarily by net earnings adjusted for non-cash charges and net cash provided

by routine changes in the Companys working capital requirements partially offset by pension contributions

In 2007 Belo applied for change in accounting method with the Internal Revenue Service IRS related to the

deduction of amortization expense associated with certain intangibles In November of 2010 the Company received

consent letter from the IRS approving the change in accounting method and subsequently filed an amendment to

its 2007 federal tax return As result of the amended return the Company recorded tax refund receivable of

$31615 The IRS completed its final review in 2011 and inJanuary 2012 the Company received the tax refund

Investing Cash Flows

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $19369 $7738 and $8148 in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

These cash flows are primarily attributable to capital expenditures as more fully described below

Capital Expenditures

Total capital expenditures for continuing operations were $21289 $15758 and $14968 in 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively These were primarily for television station equipment and corporate-driven technology initiatives As of

December 31 2012 projected capital expenditures for 2013 related to Belos television businesses and related assets

are approximately $25000 Belo expects to finance future capital expenditures using cash generated from oper

ations and when necessary borrowings under the revolving credit facility

Property Transaction

In June 2011 the Company received $5919 in proceeds from the sale of real estate purchased in 2005 for potential

construction and recorded an immaterial gain on the sale

In vestments

The Company received $2777 $2431 and $7366 in cash distributions from its investments for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Financing Cash Flows

Net cash flows used in financing activities were $221869 $20903 and $131808 in the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The 2012 cash flows used for financing activities consisted primarily of repayment

of senior notes payment of dividends borrowings and repayments
under the Companys revolving credit facility

and purchases
of treasury stock The 2011 financing cash flows consisted primarily of borrowings and repayments

under the Companys revolving credit facility and the payment of dividends The 2011 cash flows used for financing

activities decreased significantly
from 2010 because there were no borrowings under the credit facility since the first

half of 2011 The 2010 financing cash flows consisted primarily of borrowings and repayments under the Companys

revolving credit facility
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

6% Senior Notes due May 30 2013 $175748
8% Senior Notes due November 15 2016 272025 2712557% Senior Debentures dueJune 2027 200000 200000

V% Senior Debentures due September 15 2027 240000 240000

Fixed-rate debt 712025 887003

Revolving credit facility including short-term unsecured notes 21000

Total $733025 $887003

The combined weighted average effective interest rate for these debt instruments was 7.5
percent as of both

December 31 2012 and 2011

On November 30 2012 the Company redeemed the 6-V4% Senior Notes with principal balance of $175925 These

notes were originally due May 30 2013 The Company elected to redeem the notes early The Company paid

premium of $5529 and recorded charge of $173 related to the write-off of debt issuance costs due to the early

redemption

On December 21 2011 the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Competitive Advance and Revolving

Credit Facility Agreement withJPMorgan Chase Bank N.A Suntrust Bank Royal Bank of Canada and other lend

ers which matures upon expiration of the agreement on August 15 2016 the Credit Agreement The Credit

Agreement amended and restated the Companys Prior Credit Agreement The amendment reduced the total

amount of the Credit Agreement to $200000 extended the maturity date to August 15 2016 and reduced the exist

ing restrictions on dividend payments share repurchases investments and acquisitions and modified certain other

terms and conditions The Credit Agreement may be used for working capital and other general corporate pur
poses including letters of credit The Credit Agreement is guaranteed by the each of the Companys 100%-owned

subsidiaries as of the effective date of the Credit Agreement Revolving credit borrowings under the Credit Agree

ment bear interest at variable interest rate based on either LIBOR or base rate in either case plus an applicable

margin that varies depending upon the Companys leverage ratio Commitment fees of up to 0.625 percent per year
of the total unused commitment depending on the Companys leverage ratio accrue and are payable under the

facility

The Company is required to maintain certain leverage and interest ratios specified in the agreement The leverage
ratio is generally defined as the ratio of debt to cash flow and the senior leverage ratio is generally defined as the

ratio of the debt under the credit facility to cash flow The interest
coverage

ratio is generally defined as the ratio of

interest expense to cash flow At December 31 2012 the maximum allowed leverage ratios are as follows

Maximum allowed
From To

leverage ratio

December 31 2012 December 30 2013 5.50

December 31 2013 Thereafter 5.00

In addition the Company is required to have an interest coverage ratio of not less than 2.0 and senior leverage

ratio of less than 1.0 While Belo was well within these limits at December 31 2012 the failure in the future to com
ply with the covenants in the agreements governing the terms of our indebtedness could be an event of default

which if not cured or waived would permit acceleration of all our indebtedness and related payment obligations

The Credit Agreement contains additional covenants that are usual and customary for credit facilities of this type

The Credit Agreement allows the Company to pay
dividends and repurchase shares up to $100000 per year as long

as the leverage ratio is less than 45 and the Company maintains $75000 of liquidity after any such payment or

repurchase is made Redemption of the Companys bonds due in 2016 and 2027 are exempt from the $100000 per

year limitation Repurchases of the Companys bonds due in 2013 which were retired early on November 30 2012

was exempt from both the $100000 per year limitation and the $75000 liquidity restriction
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At December 31 2012 the outstanding balance under the Credit Agreement was $21000 the weighted average

interest rate was 2.7 percent and all unused borrowings were available Additionally the Companys leverage ratio

was 2.8 its interest coverage
ratio was 3.8 and its senior leverage ratio was 0.1 At December 31 2012 the Company

was in compliance with all debt covenants

At December 31 2009 the Company had an Amended and Restated $460750 Competitive Advance and Revolving

Credit Facility Agreement withJPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.J.P Morgan Securities Inc Banc of America Securities

LLC Bank of America N.A and other lenders which was set to mature upon expiration of the agreement on

December 31 2012 the Prior Credit Agreement On August 20 2010 the Company voluntarily reduced the

commitment to $205000 The Prior Credit Agreement was guaranteed by the each of the Companys 100%-owned

subsidiaries as of the effective date of the Prior Credit Agreement In connection with the decrease in capacity in

2010 mentioned above the Company recorded charge of $1225 related to the write-off ofdebt issuance costs

This charge is included in interest expense

Dividends

The following table
presents

dividend information for the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 No dividends

were paid for the year
ended December 31 2010

2012 2011

Dividends paid
$56290 $10369

Dividends declared per share 0.57 0.15

Exercise of Stock Options

The following table presents stock option exercise information for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010

2012 2011 2010

Options exercised 225 162 56

Exercisable options 5366 6897 8576

Net proceeds received from the exercise of stock options 421 300 99

Share Repurchase Program

The Company has stock repurchase program pursuant to an authorization from Belos Board of Directors on

December 2005 There is no expiration
date for this repurchase program The remaining authorization for the

repurchase of shares as of December 31 2012 under this authority was 12010 shares The Prior Credit Agreement

which was effective from November 16 2009 through December 21 2011 did not permit share repurchases
There

were no share repurchases in 2011 or 2010 The 2012 Credit Agreement which became effective on December 21

2011 allows share repurchases with certain limitations as described above During 2012 the Company repurchased

1021 shares for total cost of $5964 All shares repurchased were retired in the period purchased

Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes the following specified commitments of the Company as of December 31 2012 See the

Consolidated Financial Statements Note 14Commitments for more information on contractual obligations

Nature of Commitment Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Long-term debt principal only 733025 $293025 $440000

Interest on long-term debt 566925 55467 55467 55467 52590 32900 315034

Broadcast rights and programming 83850 40499 28191 8197 1668 1403 3892

Capital expenditures and licenses 3421 3421

Non-cancelable operating leases 17803 2426 1686 1348 1158 1117 10068

Total $1405024 $101813 $85344 $65012 $348441 $35420 $768994

Interest on long-term debt Includes annual interest on fixed rate debt at the applicable stated rates and interest

on variable rate debt at the interest rates in effect at December 31 2012

Broadcast rights and programming Includes broadcast rights for both syndicated programs that have been deliv

ered and are available for broadcasting as well as programs that have not yet been produced Also includes amounts

fixed or currently accrued under network affiliation agreements and excludes variable amounts payable under

network affiliation agreements where estimates are less certain
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The contractual obligations table does not include
actuarially projected minimum funding requirements of the

Companys Pension Plan due to significant uncertainties regarding the assumptions involved in making such mini

mum funding projections including interest rate levels ii asset returns and iii what if any changes will

occur to regulatory requirements While subject to change the minimum contribution amounts for the Pension

Plan for 2013 and 2014 under current reguktions are estimated to be approximately $13600 and $16900

respectively Further contributions are currently projected for 2015 through 2020 but amounts cannot be reasonably
estimated due to the uncertainties listed above As of December 31 2012 the Companys total net pension obliga

tion as reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet was $106590 See the Consolidated Financial Statements Note

7Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post Retirement Plans for additional information regarding the Pension Plan

Pension Split Disclosure

In October 2010 Belo and Belo agreed to split the Pension Plan into separately-sponsored pension plans effec

tiveJanuary 2011 Under the agreement participant benefit liabilities and assets allocable to approximately 5100

current and former employees of Belo and its related newspaper businesses were transferred to two new

defined benefit pension plans created sponsored and managed by or on behalf of Belo Effective January

2011 the new Belo plans were solely responsible for paying participant benefits for the current and former

employees of Belo and the Company is no longer responsible for those liabilities The participant benefit

liabilities and assets pertaining to current and former employees of Belo and its related television businesses con
tinue to be held by the Pension Plan sponsored and managed by or on behalf of Belo

For Belo the January 2011 pension split transaction was treated as settlement under ASC 715 Under settlement

accounting for pensions the split of the Companys Pension Plan resulted in the transfer of $238833 in Pension

Plan assets and $339799 in Pension Plan liabilities to the new plans sponsored by Belo This resulted in

reduction in the net unfunded liability of $100966 which was recorded as non-cash settlement gain and recog
nition of $129665 in actuarial losses previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss which was

recorded as non-cash settlement charge This settlement gain and charge resulted in net non-cash settlement

charge of $28699 This charge was partially offset by final net pension contribution reimbursement of $8233

received from Belo The combined result of all pension split settlement transactions in 2012 was net charge

before taxes of $20466

Other

The Company has various options available to meet its 2012 capital and operating commitments including cash on

hand short term investments internally generated funds and $200000 revolving credit agreement The Company
believes its current financial condition and credit relationships are adequate to fund both its current obligations as

well as near-term growth

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Dollars in thousands

The market risk inherent in the financial instruments issued by Belo represents the potential loss arising from

adverse changes in interest rates See the Consolidated Financial Statements Note Long-Term Debt for

information concerning the contractual interest rates of Belos debt At December 31 2012 and 2011 the fair value

of Belos fixed-rate debt was estimated to be $769541 and $865921 respectively using quoted market prices and

yields obtained through independent pricing sources The carrying amount of fixed-rate debt was $712025 and

$887003 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Various financial instruments issued by Belo are sensitive to changes in interest rates Interest rate changes would

result in gains or losses in the market value of Belos fixed-rate debt due to differences between the current market

interest rates and the rates governing these instruments hypothetical 10 percent decrease in interest rates would

increase the fair value of the Companys fixed-rate debt by $34949 at December 31 2012 $45787 at December 31

2011 With respect to the Companys variable-rate debt 10 percent change in interest rates for the years ended

December 31 2012 or 2011 would have resulted in an immaterial annual change to Belos
pretax earnings and cash

flows
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K Financial statement schedules have been omitted

because the required information is contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements or related Notes or

because such information is not applicable

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

During the quarter ended December 31 2012 there were no changes in the Companys internal control over finan

cial reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect Belos internal control over

financial reporting

The Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys manage

ment including the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice President/Chief Financial

Officer and Treasurer of the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K Based upon that evaluation the President and Chief

Executive Officer and Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer concluded that as of the end of

the period covered by this report the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective such that

information relating to the Company including its consolidated subsidiaries required to be disclosed in the

Companys SEC reports is recorded processed summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in

the SEC rules and forms and ii is accumulated and communicated to the Companys management including the

President and Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer as appro

priate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

SEC rules implementing Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require our 2012 Annual Report on Form

10-K to contain managements report regarding the effectiveness of internal control and an independent

accountants attestation on managements assessment of our internal control over financial reporting
As basis for

our report we tested and evaluated the design documentation and operating effectiveness of internal control

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting as

such term is defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f of Belo Corp Belo or the Company There

are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal control including the possibility of human error and the

circumvention or overriding of controls Accordingly even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable

assurance with respect to financial statement preparation Further because of changes in conditions the effective

ness of internal control may vary over time

Management has evaluated the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 This

assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on

this assessment management believes that Belo maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2012

Ernst Young LLP the Companys Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm has issued an attestation

report on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting That report appears immedi

ately following this report
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Belo Corp

We have audited Belo Corp.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Belo Corp.s management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our

audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regard

ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accord

ance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail acurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with gen
erally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets

that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate

ments Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce
dures may deteriorate

In our opinion Belo Corp maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of Belo Corp as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related

consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended December 31 2012 and our report dated March 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

/s/ ERNST YOUNG LLP

Dallas Texas

March 2013
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information set forth under the headings Belo Corp Stock OwnershipSection 16a Beneficial Ownership

Reporting Compliance Proposal One Election of Directors Corporate GovernanceCommittees of the Board

Audit Committee Corporate GovernanceCommittees of the BoardNominating and Corporate Governance

Committee and Executive Officers contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Companys Annual Meet

ing of Shareholders to be held on May 2013 is incorporated herein by reference

Belo has Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all directors officers and employees which can be

found at the Companys Web site www.belo.com The Company will post any amendments to the Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of either the SEC or the New

York Stock Exchange on the Companys Web site Information on Belos Web site is not incorporated by reference

into this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Companys Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines and charters for the Audit

Compensation and Nominating and Governance Committees of the Board of Directors These documents can be

found at the Companys Web site www.belo.com

shareholder can also obtain without charge printed copy
of

any
of the materials referred to above by contacting

the Company at the following address

Belo Corp
400 South Record Street

Dallas Texas 75202-4841

Attn Corporate Secretary

Telephone 214 977-6606

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information set forth under the headings Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Compensation Committee ReportSummary Compensation TableGrants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2012Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2012Post-Employment

BenefitsPension Benefits at December 31 2012Non-Qualified Deferred CompensationChange In Control

Arrangements and Other Agreements Upon Termination of EmploymentPotential Payments on Change in Con

trol or Upon Termination of Employment at December 31 2012Director Compensation Corporate Governance

Committees of the BoardCompensation Committee and Corporate GovernanceCompensation Committee

Interlocks and Insider Participation contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Companys Annual Meet

ing of Shareholders to be held on May 2013 is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information set forth under the heading Belo Corp Stock Ownership contained in the definitive Proxy State

ment for the Companys Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 2013 is incorporated
herein by

reference

Information regarding the number of shares of common stock available under the Companys equity compensation

plans
is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements Note 5Long-Term Incentive Plan
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Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information set forth under the heading Certain
Relationships and Corporate GovernanceDirector

Independence contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Companys Annual Meeting of Shareholders to

be held on May 2013 is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information set forth under the heading Proposal Two Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Regis
tered Public Accounting Firm contained in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Companys Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to be held on May 2013 is incorporated herein by reference

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements listed in the Index to Financial Statements included in the table of contents are

filed as part of this
report

The financial schedules required by Regulation S-X are either not applicable or are included in the

information provided in the Consolidated Financial Statements or related Notes which are filed as part of

this report

Exhibits

Exhibits marked with an asterisk are incorporated by reference to documents
previously filed by the

Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission as indicated All other documents are filed with

this report Exhibits marked with tilde are management contracts or compensatory plans contracts or

arrangements filed pursuant to Item 601 b10 iii of Regulation S-K

Exhibit Number Description

2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement by and between Belo Corp and Belo Corpo
ration dated as of February 2008 Exhibit 2.1 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 12 2008 Securities

and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the February 12 2008 Form 8-K
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company dated May 2012

Exhibit 3.1i to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on May 10 2012 Securities and Exchange Commission

File No 00 1-08598 the May 10 2012 Form 8-K
3.2 Certificate of Designation of Series Common Stock of the Company dated May 2012

Exhibit 3.1i to the May 10 2012 Form 8-K

33 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company effective March 2009 Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on March 11 2009 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the March 11

2009 Form 8-K
34 Amendment No to the Bylaws of Belo Corp as amended and restated effective March

2009 Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission onJuly 29 2011 Securities and Exchange Commission

File No 001-08598

35 Amendment No to the Bylaws of Belo Corp as amended and restated effective March

2009 Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on September 23 2011 Securities and Exchange Commission

File No 001-08598

4.1 Certain rights of the holders of the Companys Common Stock are set forth in Exhibits 3.1-3.5

above
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Exhibit Number Description

4.2 Specimen Form of Certificate representing shares of the Companys Series Common Stock

Exhibit 4.1 to the May 10 2012 Form 8-K

43 Specimen Form of Certificate representing shares of the Companys Series Common Stock

Exhibit 4.2 to the May 10 2012 Form 8-K

4.4 Instruments defining rights of debt securities

Indenture dated as ofJune 1997 between the Company and The Chase Manhattan

Bank as Trustee the Indenture Exhibit 4.61 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedJune 30 1997 Securities and Exchange

Commission File No 002-74702 the 2nd Quarter 1997 Form l0-Q
$200 million 7% Senior Debenture due 2027 Exhibit 4.64 to the 2nd Quarter 1997

Form 10-Q

Officers Certificate datedJune 13 1997 establishing terms of debt securities pursuant to

Section 3.1 of the Indenture Exhibit 4.65 to the 2nd Quarter 1997 Form 10-Q

$200 million 7V4% Senior Debenture due 2027 Exhibit 4.66a to the Compa

nys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 1997

Securities and Exchange Commission File No 002-74702 the 3rd Quarter 1997

Form 10-Q
$50 million /4% Senior Debenture due 2027 Exhibit 4.66 to the 3rd Quar

ter 1997 Form 10-Q

Officers Certificate dated September 26 1997 establishing terms of debt securities

pursuant to Section 3.1 of the Indenture Exhibit 4.67 to the 3rd Quarter 1997

Form 10-Q

Form of Belo Corp 8% Senior Notes due 2016 Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 16 2009 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the

November 16 2009 Form 8-K
Supplemental Indenture dated November 16 2009 among the Company the

Guarantors of the Notes and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company N.A as

Trustee Exhibit 4.1 to the November 16 2009 Form 8-K

Underwriting Agreement dated November 10 2009 between the Company the

Guarantors of the Notes and JPMorgan Securities Inc Exhibit 1.1 to the November 16

2009 Form 8-K

10.1 Financing agreements

Amendment and Restated Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated as of

December 21 2011 among the Company as Borrower Chase Bank N.A as

Administrative Agent JPMorgan Securities LLC Suntrust Robinson Humphrey Inc

and RBC Capital Markets asJoint Lead Arrangers andJoint Bookrunners Suntrust Bank

and Royal Bank of Canada as Co-Syndication agents
The Northern Trust Company and

Capital One N.A as Co-Documentation Agents Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December

22 2011 Securities and Exchange file No 001-08598 the December 22 2011

Form 8-K
Guarantee Agreement dated as of December 21 2011 among Belo Corp the

Subsidiaries of Belo Corp identified therein and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A

Exhibit 10.2 to the December 22 2011 Form 8-K

10.2 Compensatory plans

Belo Savings Plan

Belo Savings Plan Amended and Restated effective January
2008 Exhibit 99.1 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on December 11 2007 Securities and Exchange Commission File

No 001-08598 the December 11 2007 Form 8-K
First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Belo Savings Plan effective as of

January 2008 Exhibit 10.21b to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter endedJune 30 2008 Securities and Exchange

Commission File No 001-08598
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Exhibit Number Description

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Belo Savings Plan effective as

ofJanuary 2009 Exhibit 10.21c to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K dated March 2009 Securities and Exchange Commission

File No 001-08598 the 2008 Form 10-K
Third Amendment to the Amended and Restated Belo Savings Plan effective as of

April 12 2009 Exhibit 10.1 to the March 11 2009 Form 8-K
Fourth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Belo Savings Plan effective as of

September 10 2009 Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 10 2009

Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598

Fifth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Belo Savings Plan dated

December 2010 Exhibit 10.2.1 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K dated March 11 2011 Securities and Exchange Commission

file No 001-08598

Belo 1995 Executive Compensation Plan as restated to incorporate amendments

through December 1997 Exhibit 10.33 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K dated March 19 1998 Securities and Exchange Commission

File No 002-74702

Amendment to 1995 Executive Compensation Plan datedJuly 21 1998 Exhibit

10.23 to the Companys Quarterly report on form l0-Qfor the quarter ended

June 30 1998 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 002-74702

Amendment to 1995 Executive Compensation Plan dated December 16 1999

Exhibit 10.23b to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K dated

March 15 2000 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the

1999 Form 10-K
Amendment to 1995 Executive Compensation Plan dated December 2003

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March

2004 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the 2003
Form 10-K
Form of Belo Executive Compensation Plan Award Notification for Employee
Awards Exhibit 10.23 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K dated

March 2006 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the

2005 Form 10-K
Management Security Plan Exhibit 10.31 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K dated March 12 1997 Securities and Exchange Commission No 001-08598

Amendment to Management Security Plan of Belo Corp and Affiliated Companies

as restated effectiveJanuary 1982 Exhibit 10.24 to the 1999 Form 10-K

-4 Belo Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Belo Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan As Amended and Restated Effective

January 2004 Exhibit 10.25 to the 2003 Form 10-K

Belo Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan As Amended and Restated Effective

January 2007 Exhibit 99.6 to the December 11 2007 Form 8-K

Belo Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan As Amended and Restated Effective

January 12008 Exhibit 10.25c to the 2008 Form 10-K

Belo Pension Transition Supplement Restoration Plan effective April 2007

Exhibit 99.5 to the December 11 2007 Form 8-K

First Amendment to the Belo Pension Transition Supplement Restoration Plan

dated May 12 2009 Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 14 2009 Securities

and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598

Second Amendment to the Belo Pension Transition Supplement Restoration Plan

dated March 2010 Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2010 Securities

and Exchange Commission file No 001-08598
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Exhibit Number Description

Belo 2000 Executive Compensation Plan Exhibit 4.15 to the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

August 2000 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 333-43056

First Amendment to Belo 2000 Executive Compensation Plan effective as of

December 31 2000 Exhibit 10.26 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K dated March 12 2003 Securities and Exchange Commission File

No 00 1-08598 the 2002 Form 10-K
Second Amendment to Belo 2000 Executive Compensation Plan dated

December 2002 Exhibit 10.26 to the 2002 Form 10-K

Third Amendment to Belo 2000 Executive Compensation Plan dated December

2003 Exhibit 10.2 to the 2003 Form 10-K

Form of Belo Executive Compensation Plan Award Notification for Employee

Awards Exhibit 10.26 to the 2005 Form 10-K

Belo Amended and Restated 2004 Executive Compensation Plan Exhibit 10.28 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 12 2010 Securities and

Exchange Commission File No 001-08598 the 2009 Form 10-K
Form of Belo 2004 Executive Compensation Plan Award Notification for Employee

Option Awards Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2006 Securities and

Exchange Commission File No 001-08598

Form of Belo 2004 Executive Compensation Plan Award Notification for Employee

Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Awards Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

March 2012 Securities and Exchange Commission file No 001-08598

Form of Award Notification under the Belo 2004 Executive Compensation Plan for

Non-Employee Director Awards Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 12

2005 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 00 1-08598

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation Exhibit 10.29 to the 2009

Form 10-K

Belo Corp Change In Control Severance Plan Exhibit 10.210 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009 Securities and

Exchange Commission File No 001-08598

10.3 Agreements relating to the spin-off distribution of Belo

Tax Matters Agreement by and between Belo Corp and Belo Corporation dated as

of February 2008 Exhibit 10.1 to the February 12 2008 Form 8-K

First Amendment to Tax Matters Agreement by and between Belo Corp and

Belo Corporation dated as of September 14 2009 Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on September 15 2009 Securities and Exchange Commission

File No 001-08598

Employee Matters Agreement by and between Belo Corp and Belo Corporation

dated as of February 2008 Exhibit 10.2 to the February 12 2008 Form 8-K

Amendment to Employee Matters Agreement as set forth in the Pension Plan

Transfer Agreement dated as of October 2010 Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys

Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on October 2010 Securities and Exchange Commission File No 001-08598

the October 2010 Form 8-K
Services Agreement by and between Belo Corp and Belo Corporation dated as of

February 2008 Exhibit 10.3 to the February 12 2008 Form 8-K

Pension Plan Transfer Agreement by and between Belo Corp and Belo

Corporation dated as of October 2010 Exhibit 10.1 to the October 82010 Form 8-K

12 Statement re Computation of Ratios

21 Subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

24 Power of Attorney set forth on the signature pages hereof
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Exhibit Number Description

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

oolOl INS XBRL Instance Document

oolOl.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

co101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

oolOl.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

oolOl LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

oolOl.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Company has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

BELO CORP

By ./s/ Dunia Shive

Dunia Shive

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Dated March 2013

POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Dunia Shive Carey Hendrickson and Guy Kerr and each

of them and their substitutes our true and lawful attorneys-in-fact with full power to execute in our name and behalf

in the capacities indicated below any and all amendments to this report and to file the same with all exhibits

thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission and hereby

ratify and confirm all that such attorneys-in-fact or any of them or their substitutes shall lawfully do or cause to be

done by virtue thereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the fol

lowing persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

/s/ RobertW Decherd Chairman of the Board March 62013

Robert Decherd

/s/ DuniaA Shive President Chief Executive Officer March 62013

Dunia Shive
and Director

/s/ Peter Altabef Director March 2013

Peter Altabef

/s/ Henry BectonJr Director March 2013

Henry RectonJr

/s/ Judith Craven M.D M.P.H Director March 2013

Judith Craven M.D M.P.H

/s/ Dealey Herndon Director March 2013

Dealey Herndon

/s/ James Moroney III Director March 2013

James Moroney III

/s/ Wayne Sanders Director March 2013

Wayne Sanders

/s/ Anne Szostak Director March 2013

Anne Szostak
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Signature Title Date

/s/ McHenry TichenorJr Director March 2013

McHenry TichenorJr

/s/ Lloyd Ward Director March 2013

Lloyd Ward

/s/ Carey Hendrickson Senior Vice President/ March 2013

Carey Hendrickson Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Belo Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Belo Corp as of December 31 2012 and 2011

and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 These financial statements are the responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Belo Corp at December 31 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Belo Corp.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ ERNST YOUNG LLP

Dallas Texas

March 2013

Belo Corp 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K PAGE 39



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31

2011In thousands except per
share amounts 2012

Net Operating Revenues $714719 $650142 $687395

Operating Costs and Expenses

Station salaries wages
and employee benefits 224348 214861 209945

Station programming and other operating costs 197795 204973 199304

Corporate operating costs 33393 25338 36487

Pension settlement charge and contribution reimbursements 20466 8572

Depreciation 30103 30796 34693

Total operating costs and expenses 485639 496434 471857

Earnings from operations 229080 153708 215538

Other Income and Expense
Interest expense 69705 72393 77895
Other income expense net 2716 6541 1377

Total other income and expense 72421 65852 76518

Earnings before income taxes 156659 87856 139020

Income tax expense 56929 29898 52114

Net earnings 99730 57958 86906

Less Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 440

Net earnings attributable to Belo Corp $100170 57958 86906

Net earnings per
share

Basic 0.96 0.55 0.83

Diluted 0.95 0.55 0.83

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 103507 103606 103026

Diluted 104012 103980 103437

Dividendsdeclaredpershare 0.57 0.15

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

In thousands

Net earnings

Other comprehensive income loss
Amortization of net actuarial loss net of tax

Pension funded status adjustment net of tax

Split of Pension Plan with Belo net of tax

Total other comprehensive income loss

Years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$99730 57958 $86906

Comprehensive income

Less Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to Belo Corp

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2521 1771

9544 31611
85222

7023 55382

92707 113340

440

$93147 $113340

2969

6107

3138

83768

$83768
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Current assets

Cash and temporary cash investments 9437 61118

Accounts receivable net of allowance of $2916 and $3055 at December 31 2012

and 2011 respectively 140605 149584

Income tax receivable 31629

Deferred income taxes 1422 1572

Short-term broadcast rights 6614 7571

Prepaid and other current assets 9721 7549

Total current assets 167799 259023

Property plant and equipment at cost

Land 39717 40617

Buildings and improvements 131789 130297

Broadcast equipment 332940 336870

Other 104857 101136

Advance payments on property plant and equipment 2476 3209

Total property plant and equipment 611779 612129

Less accumulated depreciation 465257 455014

Property plant and equipment net 146522 157115

Intangible assets net 725399 725399

Goodwill 423873 423873

Other assets 35999 46195

Total assets $1499592 $1611605

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS continued

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity December 31

In thousands except per share amounts 2012 2011

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 20348 19677

Accrued compensation and benefits 24341 21079

Short-term pension obligation 20000 19300

Income taxes payable 9043 12922

Accrued interest payable 9123 10378

Other accrued expenses 11924 7692

Short-term film obligations 5792 6190

Dividends payable 8331 5189

Deferred revenue 2911 3435

Total current liabilities 111813 105862

Long-term debt 733025 887003

Deferred income taxes 257864 244361

Pension obligation 86590 93012

Other liabilities 10576 14164

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock $0.01 par value Authorized 5000 shares none issued

Common stock $0.01 par value Authorized 450000 shares

Series Issued and outstanding 95036 and 93672 shares at December 31
2012 and 2011 respectively 950 937

Series Issued and outstanding 8282 and 10115 shares at December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively 83 101

Additional paid-in capital 1089764 1090513

Retained deficit 696269 737007
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 94364 87341

Total Belo Corp shareholders equity 300164 267203

Noncontrolling interests 440

Total shareholders equity 299724 267203

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $1499592 $1611605

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Total

Belo

Corp

Equity NCI2

82862

86906

In thousands

Common Stock

Three
years

ended December 31 2012

Shares Additional Retained

Paid-in
Earnin9s

Series Series Amount Capital Deficit AOCL1

90956 11642 $1026 $1082303 $860882 $139585

86906

Total

Equity

82862

86906

Balance at December 31 2009

Net earnings

Other comprehensive loss

netoftax 3138 3138 3138
Exercise of stock options 56 98 99 99

Excess tax benefit from

long-term incentive plan 93 93 93

Conversion of RSUs 535

Share-based compensation 3820 3820 3820

Conversion of Series to

Series 1370 1370

Balance at December 31 2010 92917 10272 $1032 $1086309 $773976 $142723 $170642 $170642

Net earnings 57958 57958 57958

Other comprehensive

income net of tax 55382 55382 55382

Exercise of stock options 72 90 298 300 300

Excess tax benefit from

long-term incentive plan 166 166 166

Conversion of RSUs 436

Share-based compensation 3744 3744 3744

Dividends 15558 15558 15558

Adjustment to spin-off

distribution of Belo 5431 5431 5431
Conversion of Series to

Series 247 247

Balance at December 31 2011 93672 10115 $1038 $1090513 $737007 87341 $267203 $267203

Net earnings loss 100170 100170 440 99730

Other comprehensive loss

net of tax 7023 7023 7023

Purchase and subsequent

retirementoftreasurystock 1021 10 5954 5964 5964
Exercise of stock options 175 50 419 421 421

Excess tax benefit from

long-term incentive plan 418 418 418

Conversion of RSUs 327

Share-based compensation 4371 4371 4371

Dividends 59432 59432 59432
Conversion of Series to

Series 1883 1883
Balance at December 31 2012 95036 8282 $1033 $1089764 $696269 94364 $300164 $440 $299724

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Noncontrollirig interests
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Provided Used Years ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010

Operations

Net earnings 99730 57958 86906

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operations

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 5702

Gain on division of Belo Investment LLC 4467

Depreciation 30103 30796 34693

Pension settlement charge 28699

Pension contributions 19226 27157 14287
Deferred income taxes 17282 8115 55756

Employee retirement benefit
expense 2751 4149 5171

Share-based compensation 6030 3147 3054

Other non-cash items 2536 1290 3705

Equity income loss from partnerships 2006 1720 138

Other net 1473 802 3127
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net 7634 6387 6236
Income tax receivable 31615

Other current assets and other assets 4810 1439 831

Accounts payable 467 4081 387

Accrued compensation and benefits 3264 5483 13318

Other accrued expenses 3446 9533 6613

Interest payable 1255 26 277
Income taxes payable/receivable 3865 5513 35770

Net cash provided by operations 189557 81450 143465

Investments

Capital expenditures 21289 15758 14968
Proceeds from disposition of real estate 5919

Other investments net 1920 2101 6820

Net cash used for investments 19369 7738 8148

Financing

Net proceeds from revolving debt 23000 32000 49700

Payments on revolving debt 2000 43000 181700

Extinguishment of debt 181454
Dividends on common stock 56290 10369
Purchases of treasury

stock 5964
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 421 300 99

Excess tax benefit from option exercises 418 166 93

Net cash used for financing 221869 20903 131808

Net increase decrease in cash and
temporary

cash investments 51681 52809 3509

Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of
year 61118 8309 4800

Cash and
temporary

cash investments at end of
year 9437 61118 8309

Supplemental Disclosures Note 16

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business and Principles of Consolidation Belo Corp.s Belo or the Company operating segments are

defined as its television stations and cable news channels within given market The Company has

determined that all of its operating segments meet the criteria under Accounting Standards Codification

ASC 280 to be aggregated into one reporting segment

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Belo and its wholly-owned subsidiaries after

the elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions Belo accounts for its interests in

partnerships using the equity method of accounting with Belos share of the results of operations being

reported in Other Income and Expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

As further discussed in Note the Company has adopted ASU No 2011-05 In preparing the initial annual

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income under the provisions of ASU No 2011-05 the Compa

nys presentation of total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31 2011 within the

Companys Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity has been revised to include the recognition as

component of total comprehensive income of an $85222 credit related to its Pension Plan split with

A.H Belo as discussed in Note The $85222 credit was appropriately recorded as component of accu

mulated other comprehensive loss AOCL and included in total equity for all periods presented but was

not shown in the subtotal of total comprehensive income Excluding such amount from total compre
hensive income had no effect on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets Consolidated Statements of

Operations or Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows or total shareholders equity as presented

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements the Company has reviewed events that

have occurred subsequent to December 31 2012 through the issuance of the financial statements

All amounts are in thousands except per share amounts unless otherwise indicated

Cash and Temporary Cash Investments Belo considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with

remaining maturity of three months or less to be temporary cash investments Such temporary cash

investments are carried at fair value on recurring basis using Level inputs See Note for definition of

the fair value hierarchy

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable are net of valuation reserve that represents an estimate of

amounts considered uncollectible We estimated our allowance for doubtful accounts primarily using his

torical net write-offs of uncollectible accounts Belo analyzed the ultimate collectability of its accounts

receivable after one year using regression analysis of the historical net write-offs to determine the

amount of those accounts receivable that were ultimately not collected The results of this analysis were

then applied to the current accounts receivable to determine the
necessary

allowance The overall reserve

is then reviewed in the context of the actual portfolio at the time and appropriate adjustments are made if

necessary Our policy is to write off accounts after all collection efforts have failed generally amounts past

due by more than one year have been written off Expense for such uncollectible amounts is included in

station programming and other operating costs The carrying amount of accounts receivable approximates

fair value

The following table shows the
expense

for uncollectible accounts and accounts written off net of recov

eries for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Expense for Accounts

Uncoflectible Written

Accounts Off

2012 $1345 $1484

2011 1818 2456

2010 1155 2096

Risk Concentration Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of

credit risk are primarily accounts receivable Concentrations of credit risk with respect to the receivables

are limited due to the large number of customers in the Companys customer base and their dispersion

across different industries and geographic areas The Company maintains an allowance for losses based

upon the expected collectability of accounts receivable
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Program Rights Program rights represent the right to air various forms of first-run and existing second-

run programming Program rights and the corresponding contractual obligations are recorded when the

license period begins and the programs are available for use Program rights are carried at the lower of

unamortized cost or estimated net realizable value on program-by-program basis Program rights and the

corresponding contractual obligations are classified as current or long-term based on estimated usage and

payment terms respectively Costs of off-network syndicated programs first-run programming and feature

films are amortized on straight-line basis over the future number of showings allowed in the contract

Property Plant and Equipment Depreciation of property plant and equipment including assets recorded

under capital leases is provided on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as fol

lows

Estimated

Useful Lives

Buildings and improvements 5-30 years

Broadcast equipment 5-15 years

Other 3-10
years

The Company reviews the carrying amount of
property plant and equipment for impairment whenever

events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recover

ability of property and equipment is measured by comparison of the carrying amount to the future undis

counted net cash flows the property and equipment is expected to generate No impairment was recorded

in any of the periods presented

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets The Company classifies the FCC licenses apart from goodwill

as separate indefinite-lived irtangible assets The Companys indefinite-lived intangible assets represent

FCC licenses in markets as defined by Nielsen Media Researchs Designated Market Area report where

the Companys stations operate Goodwill is recorded by reporting unit with each reporting unit consisting

of the television stations and cable news operations within market Goodwill and indefinite-lived

intangible assets are required to be tested at least annually for impairment or between annual tests if an

event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting

unit below its carrying amount The Company measures the fair value of goodwill and indefinite-lived

intangible assets annually as of December 31 Impairment arises when the carrying amount of the goodwill

or FCC licenses is greater than its fair value

The Company assesses qualitative factors to establish whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of

reporting unit exceeds its carrying value If the Company determines that the qualitative evaluation

indicates that the reporting unit does not meet the more likely than not criteria of its fair value exceeding

its carrying value then further quantitative analysis is required

For FCC licenses the quantitative analysis for reporting units that do not pass the qualitative evaluation

consists of comparing the calculated fair value of the market with its carrying amount The calculated fair

value is determined using discounted projected cash flow analysis that assumes that the FCC licenses are

held by hypothetical start-up stations If the calculated fair value of the FCC license exceeds its carrying

amount the FCC license is not considered to be impaired

For goodwill the quantitative analysis for reporting units that do not pass the qualitative evaluation uses

two-step process
The first step is to identify whether potential impairment exists by comparing the calcu

lated fair value of reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill The calculated fair value is

determined using discounted cash flow model that considers an estimated weighted-average cost of capi

tal If the calculated fair value of reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount goodwill of the reporting

unit is not considered to be impaired and the second step of the impairment test is not necessary If the

carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the calculated fair value second step is performed to

determine the implied fair value of the goodwill of the reporting unit by deducting the fair value of all of

the individual assets and liabilities of the reporting unit from the respective fair values of the reporting unit

as whole To the extent the implied fair value of the goodwill is less than the recorded goodwill an

impairment charge is recorded for the difference
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In performing the quantitative assessments of the Companys goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible

assets the Company must make assumptions regarding future cash flow projections and other factors to

estimate the fair value of the reporting units and intangible assets Estimates of fair value are subjective in

nature involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and are made at specific point in time

Thus changes in key assumptions from period to period could significantly affect the estimates of fair

value Significant assumptions used in the fair value estimates include projected revenues and related

growth rates over time and in perpetuity for 2012 perpetuity growth rates used in the quantitative analysis

ranged from 1.7% to 3.0% forecasted operating margins estimated tax rates capital expenditures

required working capital needs and an appropriate risk-adjusted weighted-average cost of capital for

2012 the weighted-average cost of capital used was 9.0% Additionally for the Companys FCC licenses

significant assumptions include costs and time associated with start-up initial capital investments and fore

casts related to overall market performance over time

Fair value estimates are inherently sensitive particularly with respect to FCC licenses At December 31

2012 in two of the Companys 15 markets the estimated fair value of the FCC licenses is less than

30
percent greater than their respective carrying values with the closest market having an excess of esti

mated fair value over carrying value of 24 percent significant reduction in the fair value of the FCC

licenses in either of these two markets could result in an impairment charge As of December 3d 2012 the

carrying value of the FCC licenses in those two markets represents approximately $231415 of the Compa

nys total $725399 of FCC licenses If some or all of the aforementioned key estimates or assumptions

change in the future the Company may be required to record impairment charges related to its indefinite-

lived intangible assets

As of December 31 2012 goodwill at the Companys reporting units is somewhat less sensitive as collec

tively reporting units with estimated fair valises exceeding their carrying values by more than 30 percent

represent over 88 percent of the total investments in goodwill and impairment charges related to FCC

licenses that are recorded in
any period will reduce the carrying values of those applicable reporting units

prior to the goodwill impairment evaluation In the Companys closest market having excess of estimated

fair value over carrying values reporting
unit fair value exceeded carrying value by approximately 23 per

cent If some or all of the aforementioned key estimates or assumptions change in the future the Company

may be required to record impairment charges related to its goodwill

Based upon the assessments performed as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the estimated fair value

of all of the Companys 15 reporting units exceeded their carrying amounts Additionally based on assess

ments performed as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the estimated fair value of the Companys FCC

licenses exceeded their carrying amounts and no impairments of FCC licenses were identified See Note

Revenue Recognition Belos principal sources of revenue are the sale of airtime on its television stations

advertising space on the Companys Internet websites and retransmission of its programming by cable

satellite telephone and wireless companies Broadcast revenues are recorded net of agency commissions

when commercials are aired Advertising revenues for Internet websites are recorded net of agency com

missions as the advertisements are displayed on websites Retransmission revenues are recognized in the

period earned

AdvertisingExpense The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred Belo incurred $8717 $7784 and

$4673 in advertising and promotion costs during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Employee Benefits Belo is self-insured for employee-related health care benefits with certain limits in

place third-party administrator is used to process
all claims Belos employee health insurance liabilities

are based on the Companys historical claims experience and are developed from actuarial valuations

Belos reserves associated with the exposure to the self-insured liabilities are monitored by management for

adequacy However actual amounts could vary significantly from such estimates

Share-Based Compensation
The Company records compensation expense related to its stock options

according to ASC 718 The Company records compensation expense related to its stock options using the

fair value as of the date of
grant as calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton method The Company

records the compensation expense
related to its restricted stock units RSUs using the fair value as of the

date of grant as adjusted for portion of the RSUs to reflect liabilities expected to be settled in cash
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Income Taxes Belo uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes Under this method
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax

bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect

when the differences are expected to reverse

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those esti

mates

Note Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2012 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standard Update ASU
No 2012-02 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impair

ment ASU 2012-02 allows companies to perform qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment

testing of indefinite-lived intangible assets is
necessary Companies can first determine based on certain qualitative

factors whether it is more likely than not likelihood of more than 50 percent that an indefinite-lived intangible

asset is impaired The new standard is intended to reduce the cost and complexity of testing indefinite-lived

intangible assets for impairment The revised standard is effective for annual and interim impairment tests per
formed for fiscal

years beginning after September 30 2012 and early adoption is permitted The Company adopted

this new guidance in the fourth quarter of 2012 The new standard does not affect the manner in which the Com
pany estimates fair value and will not affect the value of the Companys indefinite-lived intangible assets

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-08 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Good

will for Impairment This ASU simplifies goodwill impairment testing by adding qualitative review step to assess

whether quantitative impairment analysis is necessary Under the amended rule company is required to calculate

the fair value of business that contains recorded goodwill if it concludes based on the qualitative assessment that

it is more likely than not that the fair value of that business is less than its book value If such decline in fair value

is deemed to have occurred then the quantitative goodwill impairment test that exists under current GAAP must be

completed otherwise goodwill is deemed to be not impaired and no further testing is required until the next

annual test date or sooner if conditions or events before that date raise concerns of potential impairment in the

business The amended goodwill impairment guidance does not affect the manner in which company estimates

fair value The new standard is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal
years

beginning after December 15 2011 The value of that goodwill will not be affected by the adoption of this standard

The Company adopted the standard effective January 2012

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of Compre
hensive Income This ASU requires companies to present

the components of net income and other comprehensive

income either as one continuous statement or as two consecutive statements It eliminates the option to present

components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity The stan

dard does not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income how such items are meas
ured or when they must be reclassified to net income This standard is effective for interim and annual periods

beginning after December 15 2011 The FASB subsequently deferred the effective date of certain provisions of this

standard pertaining to the reclassification of items out of accumulated other comprehensive income This ASU
affects presentation only and will have no effect on the Companys financial condition results of operations or cash

flows The Company adopted the standard effective January 2012

Note Related Party Transactions

Belo and Belo Corporation Belo who have two common directors are considered related parties

under accounting rules The Company has no ownership interest in Belo or in any newspaper businesses or

related assets and Belo has no ownership interest in the Company or any television station businesses or

related assets Subsequent to the 2008 spin-off of Belo the Companys relationship with Belo is governed

by certain agreements between the two companies or their respective subsidiaries Although the services related to

these agreements generate continuing cash flows between Belo and Belo the amounts are not significant to

the ongoing operations of the Company
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In the separation and distribution agreement with Belo Belo and Belo indemnif each other and certain

related parties from all liabilities existing or arising from acts and events occurring or failing to occur or alleged to

have occurred or to have failed to occur regarding each others businesses whether occurring before at or after

the effective time of the spin-off See Note 15

Under the services agreement the Company and Belo or their respective subsidiaries provide each other

various services and/or support Payments made or other consideration provided in connection with all continuing

transactions between the Company and Belo will be on an arms-length basis For the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company charged $1399 $2025 and $1470 respectively for services to

Belo Belo charged $229 $1546 and $4332 for information technology and Web-related services to the

Company during the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Under the tax matters agreement with Belo in the fourth quarter 2010 the Company and Belo agreed

to allow Belos tax loss for the
year

ended December 31 2009 to be carried back against the Companys 2008

consolidated federal tax return The amended 2008 tax return generated $4732 federal income tax refund that

was allocated between the parties as determined in the agreement

The employee matters agreement allocates liabilities and responsibilities relating to employee compensation and

benefits plans and programs and other related matters in connection with the spin-off including without limitation

the treatment of outstanding Belo equity awards certain outstanding annual and long-term incentive awards and

certain retirement and welfare benefit obligations See Note for disclosures related to the split of the pension plan

by Belo and Belo

Through December 31 2011 the Company co-owned with Belo certain downtown Dallas Texas real estate

through limited liability company formed in connection with the spin-off The limited liability company was owned

in equal parts by Belo and Belo The Companys 50 percent interest in the limited liability company that owns

the Dallas Texas properties was accounted for using the equity method and was included in Other Assets on the

Companys consolidated balance sheet On December 31 2011 the Company and Belo caused the limited

liability company to divide the real estate owned by the limited liability company between Belo and Belo After

the division of these assets on December 31 2011 the Company wholly-owns the 17-story office building and one

parking lot in downtown Dallas Texas As required under applicable accounting literature the Company recorded

the assets received at their fair value and recorded non-cash gain on the transaction of $4467 in 2011 As of the

date of the transfer there were certain improvements needed on the building As condition of the transfer

Belo agreed to reimburse the Company for portion of those improvements In 2012 Belo reimbursed

the Company $571 in connection with those improvements

Other investments primarily in third party businesses held jointly with Belo of $9509 are recorded as either

equity or cost method investments and are included in Other Assets The amount of income from the third party

investments included in the Companys net income is immaterial

The Companys Dallas/Fort Worth television station WFAA-TV and The Dallas Morning News owned by Belo

provide
media content cross-promotion and other services to the other on mutually agreed upon basis That shar

ing is expected to continue for the foreseeable future

Note Goodwill and Intangible Assets

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had $725399 in FCC licenses which are indefinite-lived intangible

assets not subject to amortization Based on the Companys annual impairment assessments performed as of

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 no impairments of FCC licenses were identified

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had $423873 in goodwill Based on the Companys annual impair

ment tests of goodwill as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company determined that no impairments of

goodwill existed
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Fair value estimates are inherently sensitive particularly with respect to FCC licenses In two of the Companys
15 markets the estimated fair value of its FCC licenses is less than 30 percent greater than their respective carrying

values with the closest market having an excess of estimated fair value over carrying value of 24 percent sig

nificant reduction in the fair value of the FCC licenses in any of these two markets could result in an impairment

charge The carrying value of the FCC licenses in those two markets represents approximately $231415 of the

Companys total $725399 of FCC licenses at December 31 2012 Goodwill at the Companys reporting units is

somewhat less sensitive as collectively reporting units with estimated fair values exceeding their carrying values by

more than 30
percent represent over 88 percent of the total investments in goodwill as of December 31 2012 and

impairment charges related to FCC licenses that are recorded in any period will reduce the carrying values of those

applicable reporting units prior to the goodwill impairment evaluation In the Companys closest market having

excess of estimated fair value over carrying values reporting unit fair value exceeded carrying value by approx

imately 23 percent If some or all of the aforementioned key estimates or assumptions change in the future the

Company may be required to record additional impairment charges related to its goodwill and indefinite-lived

intangible assets

The fair value measurements for the Companys implied goodwill and FCC licenses use significant unobservable

Level inputs which reflect its own assumptions about the inputs that market participants would use in measuring

fair value including assumptions about risk The key assumptions used to determine fair value of the Companys

reporting units and FCC licenses are discussed in Note

summary of the changes in the Companys recorded goodwill is below

2012 2011

Balance atJanuaiy $423873 $423873

Goodwill impairment

Balance at December 31 $423873 $423873

Note Long-Term Incentive Plan

Belo has long-term incentive plan under which awards may be granted to employees and outside directors in the

form of non-qualified stock options incentive stock options restricted shares restricted stock units performance

shares performance units or stock appreciation rights In addition options may be accompanied by stock apprecia

tion rights and limited stock appreciation rights Rights and limited rights may also be issued without accompanying

options Cash-based bonus awards are also available under the plan The Company believes that the long-term

incentive plan better aligns the interests of its employees with those of its shareholders Shares of common stock

reserved for future grants under the plan were 2187 2975 and 3996 at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively

Under the long-term incentive plan the compensation cost that has been charged against income from continuing

operations for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $8009 $5579 and $5842 respectively
The

total income tax benefit for continuing operations recognized in the consolidated statements of operations
for

share-based compensation arrangements was $2947 $2067 and $2153 for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively

Options

The non-qualified options granted to employees and outside directors under Belos long-term incentive plan

become exercisable in cumulative installments over periods of one to three years and expire after 10 years The fair

value of each option award granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation

model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table Volatility is calculated using an analysis of historical

volatility The Company believes that the historical volatility of the Companys stock is the best method for estimat

ing future volatility The expected lives of options are determined based on the Companys historical share option

exercise experience using rolling ten-year average
The Company believes the historical experience method is the

best estimate of future exercise patterns currently available The risk-free interest rates are determined using the

implied yield currently available for zero-coupon
U.S government issues with remaining term equal to the
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expected life of the options The expected dividend yields are based on the approved annual dividend rate in effect

and current market price of the underlying common stock at the time of
grant There were no options granted in

the year ended December 31 2012 or 2011

2010

Weighted average grant date fair value $4.78

Weighted average assumptions used

Expected volatility 84.1%

Expected lives yrs

Risk-free interest rates 2.62%

Expected dividend yields

summary of option activity under the long-term incentive plan for the three
years

ended December 31 2012 is

included in the following table

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding atJanuary 7265 $16.06 9566 $15.50 10639 $15.69

Granted 609 7.09

Exercised 225 1.88 162 1.85 56 1.76

Canceled 1506 $17.13 2139 $14.66 1626 $14.07

Outstanding at December 31 5534 $16.34 7265 $16.06 9566 $15.50

Vested and exercisable at December 31 5366 $16.63 6897 $16.55 8756 $16.58

Weighted average remaining contractual term

in years
3.0 4.5 3.8

Options granted under the long-term incentive plan are granted where the exercise price equals the closing stock

price on the day of grant therefore the options outstanding have no intrinsic value until exercised The total

intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows

2012 $1207

2011 782

2010 280

The following table summarizes information net of estimated forfeitures related to stock options outstanding at

December 31 2012

Number of Weighted Average Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average

Range of Options Remaining Exercise Options Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstandings Life years Price Exercisable Price

$16 430 6.0 1.76 430 1.76

$714 1324 5.8 $10.23 1154 $10.69

$1517 789 2.9 $17.10 789 $17.10

$1823 2977 1.4 $21.00 2977 $21.00

$123 5520 3.0 $16.36 5350 $16.66

Comprised of Series shares

As of December 31 2012 there was $87 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested options

which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 0.2 years
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Restricted Stock Units RSUs

Under the long-term incentive plan the Companys Board of Directors has awarded RSUs The RSUs have service

and/or performance conditions and vest over period of one to three
years Upon vesting the RSUs will be

redeemed with 60 percent in Belos Series common stock and 40 percent in cash liability has been established

for the cash portion of the redemption During the vesting period holders of service-based RSUs and RSUs with

performance conditions where the performance conditions have been met participate in the Companys dividends

if declared by receiving payments
for dividend equivalents Such dividend equivalents are recorded as components

of the Companys share-based compensation The RSUs do not have voting rights

summary of RSU activity under the long-term incentive plan for the three years ended December 31 2012 is

summarized in the following table

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Nwnber of Average Number of Average Number of Average
RSUs Price RSUs Price RSUs Price

OutstandingatJanuaryl 1523 $6.38 1433 8.23 1895 9.86

Granted 1140 $7.17 836 7.87 492 7.20

Vested 545 $4.23 726 $11.74 891 $10.88

Canceled 53 $7.33 20 6.31 63 $12.04

Outstanding at December31 2065 $7.36 1523 6.38 1433 8.23

Vested at December 31

The fair value of the RSUs granted is determined using the closing trading price of the Companys shares on the

grant date The weighted-average grant-date fair value of the RSUs granted during the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 was $7.17 $7.87 and $7.20 respectively During 2012 545 of RSUs were converted into shares

of stock and $1188 in share-based liabilities was paid During 2011 726 of RSUs were converted into shares of stock

and $2268 in share-based liabilities was paid During 2010 891 of RSUs were converted into shares of stock and

$2447 in share-based liabilities was paid As of December 31 2012 there was $5978 of total unrecognized compen
sation cost related to non-vested RSUs The compensation cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of 1.2 years

Note Defined Contribution Plans

Belo sponsors defined contribution plan established effective October 1989 The defined contribution plan

covers substantially all employees of the Company Participants may elect to contribute portion of their pretax

compensation as provided by the plan and Internal Revenue Service IRS regulations The maximum pretax con
tribution an employee can make is 100% of his or her annual eligible compensation less required withholdings and

deductions up to statutory limits EffectiveJanuary 2011 the Company reinstated matching contributions to its

defined contribution plan at rate of $0.35 per dollar contributed by participating employee up to 6% of eligible

pay Effective January 2012 the Company increased matching contributions to its defined contribution plan at

rate of $0.50 per dollar contributed by participating employee up to 6% of eligible pay Belos contributions to its

defined contribution plans totaled $3983 and $2669 in 2012 and 2011 respectively There were no matching con
tributions in 2010

In March 2007 Belo froze benefits under the Pension Plan See Note As part of the curtailment of the Pension

Plan the Company is providing transition benefits to affected employees including supplemental contributions to

the Belo pension transition supplement plans which are defined contribution plans for period of up to five years

As result during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company accrued supplemental pension

transition contributions for these plans totaling $3820 $3079 and $3148 respectively
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Note Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post Retirement Plans

Some of the Companys employees participated in The Dealey Retirement Pension Plan Pension Plan which

covered employees who elected to continue participation in the plan when it was frozen to new participants
in 2000

for employees other than members of the Providence newspaper guild and in 2004 for members of the Provi

dence newspaper guild The benefits are based on years
of service and the average of the employees five consec

utive years of highest
annual compensation earned during the most recently completed ten years of employment

Information regarding Belos Pension Plan is included below

Belo froze benefits under the Pension Plan effective March 31 2007 As
part

of the curtailment of the Pension Plan

Belo provides transition benefits to affected Belo employees including the granting of five
years

of additional cred

ited service under the Pension Plan and supplemental contributions for period of up to five years to defined

contribution plan See Note

In February 2008 the Company spun-off its newspaper businesses and related assets to separate company
Belo Subsequent to the spin-off Belo retained sponsorship of the Pension Plan As the sole plan sponsor for

the Pension Plan Belo continued to administer benefits for Belo and Belo current and former employees In

October 2010 Belo and Belo agreed to split the Pension Plan into separately-sponsored pension plans effec

tiveJanuary 2011 Under the agreement participant benefit liabilities and assets allocable to approximately

5100 current and former employees of Belo and its related newspaper businesses were transferred to two new

defined benefit pension plans created sponsored and managed by or on behalf of Belo Effective January

2011 the new Belo plans were solely responsible for paying participant benefits for the current and former

employees of Belo and the Company is no longer responsible for those liabilities The participant benefit

liabilities and assets pertaining to current and former employees of Belo and its related television businesses con

tinue to be held by the Pension Plan sponsored and managed by or on behalf of Belo

For Belo theJanuary 2011 pension split transaction was treated as settlement under ASC 715 Under settlement

accounting for pensions the split of the Companys Pension Plan resulted in the transfer of $238833 in Pension

Plan assets and $339799 in Pension Plan liabilities to the new plans sponsored by Belo This resulted in

reduction in the net unfunded liability of $100966 which was recorded as non-cash settlement gain and recog

nition of actuarial losses of $129665 previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss which was

recorded as non-cash settlement charge This settlement gain and charge resulted in net non-cash settlement

charge of $28699 This charge was partially offset by final net pension contribution reimbursement of $8233

received from Belo as discussed below The combined result of all pension split transactions was net charge

before taxes of $20466 Additionally the Companys 2011 effective tax rate reflects the effect of deferred tax

adjustments of $7143 in pension settlement items
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The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of

plan assets for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 and the accumulated benefit obligation at

December 31 2012 and 2011 are as follows

2012 2011

Funded Status

Projected Benefit Obligation

AsofJanuaryl 271134 572097

Pension settlement 339799
Actuarial loss 24330 34784

Interest cost 12498 13265

Benefits paid 9791 9213

As of December 31 298171 271134

Fair Value of Plan Assets

As ofJanuary 158823 380010

Pension settlement 238833
Actual return loss on plan assets 23323 298

Employer contributions 19226 27157

Benefits paid 9791 9213

As of December 31 191581 158823

Funded Status as of December31 $106590 $112311

Accumulated Benefit Obligation 298171 271134

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2012 and 2011 consist of

2012 2011

Short-term pension obligation 20000 19300

Pension obligation 86590 93012

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 144738 133992

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31 2012 and 2011 include only net

actuarial losses

Belos pension costs and obligations are calculated using various actuarial assumptions and methodologies as pre
scribed under ASC 715 To assist in developing these assumptions and methodologies Belo uses the services of an

independent consulting firm To determine the benefit obligations the assumptions the Company uses include but

are not limited to the selection of the discount rate In determining the discount rate assumption the Company
used measurement date of December 31 2012 and constructed portfolio of bonds to match the benefit payment

stream that is projected to be paid from the Companys Pension Plan The discount rate used to determine benefit

obligations for the Pension Plan as of December 31 2012 and 2011 was 4.10 percent and 4.69 percent respectively

To compute the Companys net periodic benefit cost in the year ended December 31 2012 the Company uses actua

rial assumptions that include discount rate and an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets The discount

rate applied in this calculation is the rate used in computing the benefit obligation as of the end of the preceding

year The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption
is based on the weighted average expected

long-term returns for the
target allocation of plan assets as of the measurement date the end of the year and was

developed through analysis of historical market returns current market conditions and the Pension Plan assets past

experience Although the Company believes that the assumptions used are appropriate differences between

assumed and actual experience may affect the Companys operating results
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Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 4.69% 5.89% 6.18%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.50%

The net periodic pension cost includes the following components for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

subsequent to the Pension Plan split and for the year ended December 31 2010 prior to the Pension Plan split

when the Company was the sole plan sponsor

2012 2011 2010

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation 12498 13265 32829

Expected return on plan assets 13618 11865 32015
Amortization of net loss 3878 2725 4568

Net periodic pension cost 2758 4125 5382

Settlement charge 28699

Net periodic pension cost after settlement charge 2758 32824 5382

As the Pension Plan is frozen all participants are inactive Accordingly the Company is amortizing gains or losses

over the average remaining life expectancy
of inactive participants The estimated net actuarial loss for the Pension

Plan that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost in 2013 is

approximately $4500

The expected benefit payments net of administrative expenses under the plan are as follows

2013 $11886

2014 12676

2015 13542

2016 14472

2017 15397

Belos funding policy is to contribute annually to the Pension Plan amounts sufficient to meet minimum funding

requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws but not in excess of the maximum tax-deductible con

tribution During 2012 the Company made contributions totaling $19226 to the Pension Plan related to the 2012

and 2011 plan years During 2011 the Company made contributions totaling $27157 to the Pension Plan related to

the 2010 and 2011 plan years
and Belo reimbursed the Company $8233 of this amount related to con

tributions for the 2010 plan year
Belo has no further obligation to reimburse the Company for any con

tributions after the 2010 plan year During 2010 the Company made contributions totaling $14287 to the Pension

Plan for the 2009 and 2010 plan years
and Belo reimbursed the Company $8572 of this amount The Com

pany currently expects to make contributions totaling $20000 to the Pension Plan in 2013 No plan assets are

expected to be returned to the Company during the year ending December 31 2013

The primary investment objective
of the Pension Plan is to ensure over the long-term life of the plan an adequate

pool of assets to support the benefit obligations to participants retirees and beneficiaries secondary objective of

the plan is to achieve level of investment return consistent with prudent level of portfolio risk that will minimize

the financial effect of the Pension Plan on the Company There is no significant concentration of holdings in any

company industry or international country Pension Plan assets do not include any
Belo common stock
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The Pension Plan weighted-average target allocation and actual asset allocations at December 31 2012 and 2011 by

asset category are as follows

Target

Asset category Allocation 2012 2011

Domestic equity investments 40.0% 38.6% 39.6%

Fixed income investments 30.0% 28.4% 29.7%

International equity investments 20.0% 22.6% 19.5%

Opportunistic investments 10.0% 10.0% 11.2%

Cash 0.4%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Domestic and international equity investments include common stock Opportunistic investments include real

estate investment trusts high yield bonds and emerging market debt Fixed income investments include corporate

obligations and U.S government and
agency obligations

The Pension Plan invests in various investment securities Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as

interest rate market and credit risks Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities it is at

least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that

such changes could materially affect the net assets available for benefits The fair value of Pension Plan assets is

included in Note

Belo also sponsors post-retirement benefit plans for certain employees Expense for these plans recognized in 2012

2011 and 2010 was $94 $121 and $76 respectively

Note Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820-10 establishes framework for measuring fair value clarifies the definition of fair value and expands dis

closures about fair-value measurements Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants i.e the exit price That framework

provides fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value The

hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

level measurements and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs level measurements The three levels of

the fair value hierarchy are described below

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active

markets that the Company has the ability to access

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology include

Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in inactive markets

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liability and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or

other means

If the asset or liability has specific contractual term Level input must be observable for substantially

the full term of the asset or liability

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement

Belo Corp 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K PAGE 57



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The assets or liabilitys fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of

any input that is significant to the fair value measurement Valuation techniques used maximize the use of

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs

The methods described above may produce fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value

or reflective of future fair values Furthermore while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate

and consistent with other market participants the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the

fair value of certain financial instruments could result in different fair value measurement at the reporting date

These fair value principles are applied to the investments in the Companys Pension Plan

The primary investment objective of the Pension Plan is to ensure over the long-term life of the plan an adequate

pooi of assets to support the benefit obligations to participants retirees and beneficiaries secondary objective of

the plan is to achieve level of investment return consistent with the prudent level of portfolio risk that will mini

mize the financial effect of the Pension Plan on the Company The investments in the Pension Plan largely consist

of low-cost broad-market index funds to mitigate risks of concentration within market sectors Each of the funds is

diversified across wide number of securities within its stated asset class

At December 31 2012 the Pension Plan investments are in commingled funds which are recorded at fair value as

determined by the
sponsor

of the respective funds based upon closing market quotes of the underlying assets The

following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Pension Plans assets at fair value as of

December 31 2012

Level Level Level Total

U.S equitieslarge cap
56388 56388

U.S fixed income 59832 59832

International equities 42939 42939

U.S EquitiesSmall to Mid Cap 17004 17004

Real Estate Investment Trust 7532 7532

International fixed income 5806 5806

Cash 1205 1205

Other 875 875

Total assets at fair value $1205 $190376 $191581

At December 31 2011 the Pension Plan investments are in commingled funds which are recorded at fair value as

determined by the sponsor of the respective funds based upon closing market quotes of the underlying assets The

following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Pension Plans assets at fair value as of

December 31 2011

Level Level Level Total

U.S equitieslarge cap 53021 53021

U.S fixed income 52140 52140

International equities 30803 30803

U.S EquitiesSmall to Mid Cap 9494 9494

Real Estate Investment Trust 6598 6598

International fixed income 5802 5802

Cash 889 889

Other 76 76

Total assets at fair value $889 $157934 $158823
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Note Long-Term Debt

The Companys Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

6/4% Senior Notes due May 30 2013 $175748
8% Senior Notes due November 15 2016 272025 271255
71/4% Senior Debentures dueJune 2027 200000 200000

Senior Debentures due September 15 2027 240000 240000

Fixed-rate debt 712025 887003

Revolving credit facility including short-term unsecured notes 21000

Total $733025 $887003

The Companys long-term debt maturities are as follows

2013

2014

2015

2016 293025
2017 and thereafter 440000

Total $733025

The combined weighted average effective interest rate for these debt instruments was 7.5
percent as of both

December 31 2012 and 2011 The weighted average effective interest rate for the fixed rate debt was 7.7 percent
and 7.5 percent as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively At December 31 2012 and 2011 the fair value of

Belos fixed-rate debt was estimated to be $769541 and $865921 respectively The Companys publicly held long-
term debt is classified as being derived from Level inputs because the fair value for these instruments is

determined utilizing observable inputs in non-active markets

On November 30 2012 the Company redeemed the 6% Senior Notes with principal balance of $175925 These
notes were originally due May 30 2013 The Company elected to redeem the notes early and on November 30
2012 repaid the notes The Company paid premium of $5529 and recorded charge of $173 related to the write

off of debt issuance costs due to the
early redemption

On December 21 2011 the Company entered into an Amended and Restated
Competitive Advance and Revolving

Credit Facility Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A Suntrust Bank Royal Bank of Canada and other lend

ers which matures upon expiration of the agreement on August 15 2016 the Credit Agreement The Credit

Agreement amended and restated the Companys Prior Credit Agreement The amendment reduced the total

amount of the Credit Agreement to $200000 extended the maturity date to August 15 2016 and reduced the exist

ing restrictions on dividend payments share repurchases investments and acquisitions and modified certain other

terms and conditions The Credit Agreement may be used for
working capital and other general corporate pur

poses including letters of credit The Credit Agreement is guaranteed by the 100%-owned subsidiaries of the

Company Revolving credit borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at variable interest rate based on
either LIBOR or base rate in either case plus an applicable margin that varies depending upon the Companys
leverage ratio Commitment fees of up to 0.625 percent per year of the total unused commitment depending on
the Companys leverage ratio accrue and are payable under the facility

The Company is required to maintain certain leverage and interest ratios specified in the agreement The leverage
ratio is generally defined as the ratio of debt to cash flow and the senior leverage ratio is generally defined as the

ratio of the debt under the credit
facility to cash flow The interest

coverage ratio is generally defined as the ratio of

interest expense to cash flow At December 31 2012 the maximum allowed leverage ratios are as follows

Maximum allowed
From To

leverage ratio

December 31 2012 December 30 2013 5.50

December 31 2013 Thereafter 5.00
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In addition the Company is required to have an interest coverage
ratio of not less than 2.0 and senior leverage

ratio of less than 1.0 While Belo was well within these limits at December 31 2012 the failure in the future to com

ply with the covenants in the agreements governing
the terms of our indebtedness could be an event of default

which if not cured or waived would permit acceleration of all our indebtedness and payment obligations
The Prior

Credit Agreement did not permit share repurchases
This restriction was eliminated in the Credit Agreement The

Credit Agreement contains additional covenants that are usual and customary for credit facilities of this type The

Credit Agreement allows the Company to pay
dividends and repurchase shares up to $100000 per year as long as

the leverage
ratio is less than 4.5 and the Company maintains $75000 of liquidity after any

such payment or

repurchase is made Repurchases of the Companys bonds due in 2016 and 2027 are exempt from the $100000 per

year
limitation Redemption of the Companys bonds due in 2013 which were retired early on November 30 2012

was exempt from both the $100000 per year limitation and the $75000 liquidity restriction At December 31 2012

the Company had $21000 outstanding under the Credit Agreement the weighted average interest rate was 2.7

percent
and all unused borrowings were available Additionally the Companys leverage ratio was 2.8 its interest

coverage
ratio was 3.8 and its senior leverage ratio was 0.1 At December 31 2012 the Company was in compliance

with all debt covenants

At December 31 2009 the Company had an Amended and Restated $460750 Competitive
Advance and Revolving

Credit Facility Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.J.P Morgan Securities Inc Banc of America Securities

LLC Bank of America N.A and other lenders which was set to mature upon expiration of the agreement on

December 31 2012 the Prior Credit Agreement On August 20 2010 the Company voluntarily reduced the

commitment to $205000 The facility was used for working capital and other general corporate purposes including

letters of credit The Prior Credit Agreement was guaranteed by the 100%-owned subsidiaries of the Company In

connection with the decrease in capacity in 2010 mentioned above the Company recorded charge of $1225

related to the write-off of debt issuance costs This charge is included in interest expense

During 2012 2011 and 2010 cash paid for interest net of amounts capitalized was $68051 $68607 and $71993

respectively At December 31 2012 Belo had outstanding letters of credit of $4726 issued in the ordinary course of

business

Note 10 Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company issued 8.0% Senior Notes due 2016 that are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the

Companys 100%-owned subsidiaries as of the date of issuance Accordingly the following condensed consolidating

financial statements present the consolidated balance sheets consolidated statements of operations consolidated

statement of comprehensive income loss and consolidated statements of cash flows of Belo as parent the guaran

tor subsidiaries consisting of Belos 100%-owned subsidiaries as of the date of issuance non-guarantor subsidiaries

consisting of subsidiaries established by Belo subsequent to issuance and eliminations necessary to arrive at the

Companys information on consolidated basis These statements are presented in accordance with the disclosure

requirements under Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X Rule 3-10
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net Operating Revenues $714709 10 $714719

Operating Costs and Expenses

Station salaries wages and employee benefits 224072 276 224348

Station programming and other operating costs 196697 1098 197795

Corporate operating costs 27534 4055 1804 33393

Depreciation 1235 28025 843 30103

Total operating costs and expenses 28769 452849 4021 485639

Earnings loss from operations 28769 261860 4011 229080

Other Income and Expense
Interest expense 69672 33 69705
Intercompany interest 2994 2994
Other income expense net 5819 3103 2716

Total other income and expense 72497 76 72421

Earnings loss before income taxes 101266 261936 4011 156659

Income tax benefit expense 37887 96273 1457 56929

Equity in earnings loss of subsidiaries 163549 163549

Net earnings loss 100170 $165663 $2554 $163549 99730

Less Net loss from noncontrolling interests 440 440

Net earnings loss attributable to Belo Corp 100170 $165663 $2114 $163549 $100170

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Loss

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net earnings loss $100170 $165663 $2554 $163549 $99730

Amortization of net actuarial loss net of tax 2521 2521

Pension funded status adjustment net of tax 9544 9544

Comprehensive income loss 93147 165663 2554 163549 92707

Less comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling

interests 440 440

Comprehensive income loss attributable to Belo Corp 93147 $165663 $2114 $163549 $93147
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

Parent Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net Operating Revenues $650142 $650142

Operating Costs and Expenses

Station salaries wages and employee benefits 214861 214861

Station programming and other operating costs 204973 204973

Corporate operating costs 21731 3607 25338

Pension settlement charge and contribution reimbursements 20466 20466

Depreciation 1247 29549 30796

Total operating costs and expenses 43444 452990 496434

Earnings loss from operations 43444 197152 153708

Other Income and Expense
Interest expense 72312 81 72393

Intercompany interest 4463 4463
Other income net 4204 2337 6541

Total other income and expense 63645 2207 65852

Earnings loss before income taxes 107089 194945 87856

Income tax expense benefit 37962 67860 29898

Equity in earnings loss of subsidiaries 127085 127085

Net earnings loss 57958 $127085 $127085 57958

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Loss
For the Year Ended December 31 2011

Parent Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net earnings loss 57958 127085 127085 57958

Amortization of net actuarial loss net of tax 1771 1771

Pension funded status adjustment net of tax 31611 31611

Split of Pension Plan with Belo net of tax 85222 85222

Comprehensive income loss $113340 $127085 $127085 $113340
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

Parent Guarantors Eliminations Total

Net Operating Revenues $687395 $687395

Operating Costs and Expenses

Station salaries wages
and employee benefits 209945 209945

Station programming and other operating costs 199304 199304

Corporate operating costs 32676 3811 36487

Pension contribution reimbursements 8572 8572

Depreciation 1766 32927 34693

Total operating costs and expenses 25870 445987 471857

Earnings loss from operations 25870 241408 215538

Other Income and Expense
Interest expense 77778 117 77895
Intercompany interest 6850 6850
Other income net 1080 297 1377

Total other income and expense 69848 6670 76518

Earnings loss before income taxes 95718 234738 139020

Income tax expense benefit 38449 90563 52114
Equity in earnings loss of subsidiaries 144175 144175

Net earnings loss 86906 $144175 $144175 86906

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Loss
For the Year Ended December 31 2010

Parent Guarantors Eliminationt Total

Net earnings loss 86906 144175 144175 86906

Amortization of net actuarial loss net of tax 2969 2969

Pension funded status adjustment net of tax 6107 6107

Comprehensive income loss $83768 $144175 $144175 $83768
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of December 31 2012

Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

Assets

Current assets

Cash and temporary cash investments 6833 2500 104 9437

Accounts receivable net 487 140107 11 140605

Prepaid and other current assets 4017 13674 66 17757

Total current assets 11337 156281 181 167799

Property plant and equipment net 2865 129262 14395 146522

Intangible assets net 725399 725399

Goodwill 423873 423873

Deferred income taxes 42528 42528

Intercompany receivable 636455 636455

Investment in subsidiaries 483181 483181
Other assets 18297 17635 67 35999

Total assets $1194663 $1452450 $14643 $1162164 $1499592

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
8154 11812 382 20348

Accrued expenses
16202 25432 423 42057

Short-term pension obligation 20000 20000

Income taxes payable 9043 9043

Deferred revenue 2911 2911

Dividends payable 8331 8331

Accrued interest payable 9123 9123

Total current liabilities 70853 40155 805 111813

Long-term debt 733025 733025

Deferred income taxes 299552 840 42528 257864

Pension obligation
86590 86590

Intercompany payable
632543 3912 636455

Other liabilities 4471 6105 10576

Total shareholders equity 299724 474095 9086 483181 299724

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $1194663 $1452450 $14643 $1162164 $1499592
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of December 31 2011

Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

Assets

Current assets

Cash and temporary cash investments 59339 1755 24 61118

Accounts receivable net 166 149418 149584

Income tax receivable 31629 31629

Other current assets 4621 12071 16692

Total current assets 95755 163244 24 259023

Property plant and equipment net 3683 139335 14097 157115

Intangible assets net 725399 725399

Goodwill 423873 423873

Deferred income taxes 45831 45831

Intercompany receivable 687324 687324
Investment in subsidiaries 463580 463580
Other assets 23908 22220 67 46195

Total assets $1320081 $1474071 $14188 1196735 $1611605

Liabifities and Shareholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 8387 11266 24 19677

Accrued expenses 12975 21986 34961

Short-term pension obligation 19300 19300

Income taxes payable 12922 12922

Deferred revenue 3435 3435

Dividends payable 5189 5189

Accrued interest payable 10378 10378

Total current liabilities 69151 36687 24 105862

Long-term debt 887003 887003

Deferred income taxes 290192 45831 244361

Pension obligation 93012 93012

Intercompany payable 687324 687324
Other liabilities 3712 10452 14164

Total shareholders equity 267203 449416 14164 463580 267203

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $1320081 $1474071 $14188 81196735 $1611605
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

Non-

Parent Guaantors Guarantors Total

Operations

Net cash provided used for by operations 13334 178367 $2144 189557

Investments

Capital expenditures 6223 14736 330 21289
Other investments net 857 2777 1920

Net cash used for investments 7080 11959 330 19369

Financing

Net proceeds from revolving debt 23000 23000

Payments on revolving debt 2000 2000
Extinguishment of debt 181454 181454
Dividends on common stock 56290 56290
Common stock repurchased 5964 5964
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 421 421

Excess tax benefit from option exercises 418 418

Intercompany activity 163109 165663 2554

Net cash provided by used for financing 58760 165663 2554 221869

Net increase decrease in cash and temporary cash investments 52506 745 80 51681
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period 59339 1755 24 61118

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period 6833 2500 104 9437

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

Non-

parent Guarantors Guarantors Total

Operations

Net cash provided by operations 8607 72843 81450

Investments

Capital expenditures 4822 10936 15758
Proceeds from disposition of real estate 5919 5919

Other investments net 797 2898 2101

Net cash used for investments 5619 2119 7738

Financing

Net proceeds from revolving debt 32000 32000

Payments on revolving debt 43000 43000
Dividends on common stock 10369 10369
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 300 300

Excess tax benefit from option exercises 166 166

Intercompany activity 71964 71988 24

Net cash provided by used for financing 51061 71988 24 20903

Net increase decrease in cash and temporary cash investments 54049 1264 24 52809

Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period 5290 3019 8309

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period 59339 1755 $24 61118
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

Parent Guarantors Total

Operations

Net cash provided by used for operations 12561 156026 143465

Investments

Capital expenditures 1686 13282 14968
Other investments net 3524 3296 6820

Net cash provided by used for investments 1838 9986 8148

Financing

Net proceeds from revolving debt 49700 49700

Payments on revolving debt 181700 181700
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 99 99

Excess tax benefit from option exercises 93 93

Intercompany activity 144175 144175
Net cash provided by used for financing 12367 144175 131808

Net increase in cash and
temporary

cash investments 1644 1865 3509

Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period 3646 1154 4800

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period 5290 3019 8309

Note 11 Common and Preferred Stock

The total number of authorized shares of common stock is 450 million shares The Company has two series of

common stock outstanding Series and Series each with par value of $0.01 per
share The Series and Series

shares are identical except as noted herein Series shares are entitled to 10 votes per
share on all matters sub

mitted to vote of shareholders while the Series shares are entitled to one vote per share Series shares are

convertible at any time on one-for-one basis into Series shares but Series shares are not convertible into Series

shares Shares of Belos Series common stock are traded on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE symbol BLC
There is no established public trading market for shares of Series common stock

Transferability of the Series

shares is limited to family members and affiliated entities of the holder Upon any other type of transfer the Series

shares automatically convert into Series shares

On May 2012 the shareholders of the Company approved amendments to and the restatement of the Compa
nys Certificate of

Incorporation to among other things reduce the
par value of Belos common stock from

$1.67 per
share to $0.01 per share and the par value of Belos preferred stock from $1.00 per share to

$0.01 per
share The Company has reflected the change in

par
values at December 31 2012 and has retrospectively

restated the Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet as of December 31 2011 and the Consolidated Statement of

Shareholders Equity effective December 31 2009 to reflect the change in par values

The Company has stock repurchase program pursuant to authorization from Belos Board of Directors on

December 2005 There is no expiration date for this repurchase program The remaining authorization for the

repurchase of shares as of December 31 2012 under this authority was 12010 shares The Credit Agreement allows

for share repurchases under certain conditions as described in Note The Prior Credit Agreement did not allow

for share repurchases There were no share repurchases in 2011 or 2010 During 2012 the Company repurchased

1021 shares for cost of $5964 All shares repurchased were retired in the period repurchased
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Note 12 Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the reconciliation between weighted average
shares used for calculating basic and

diluted earnings per share for the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in thousands except per

share amounts

2012 2011 2010

Income Numerator

Net earnings attributable to Belo Corp $100170 57958 86906

Less Income to participating securities 1049 730 1303

Income available to common stockholders 99121 57228 85603

Effect of dilutive securities

Income available to common stockholders plus assumed

conversions 99123 57230 85608

Shares Denominator

Weighted average
shares outstanding basic 103507 103606 103026

Dilutive effect of employee stock options and PBRSUs 505 374 411

Adjusted weighted average shares outstanding 104012 103980 103437

Net earnings per share

Basic 0.96 0.55 0.83

Diluted 0.95 0.55 0.83

In calculating diluted earnings per share EPS for the years ended Iecember 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Com

pany excluded common stock options for 5794 shares 6946 shares and 9174 shares respectively because to

include them would be anti-dilutive For the year outstanding December 31 2012 the company excluded perform

ance based RSUs PBRSUs of 237 because to include them would be anti-dilutive Additionally for the
years

ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company excluded from the diluted EPS calculation restricted stock units

RSUs of 303 457 and 337 respectively because they are participating
securities

Note 13 Income Taxes

Income tax expense
for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 consists of the following

2012 2011 2010

Current

Federal $34457 $18906 $5562
State 5190 2877 1920

Total current 39647 21783 3642

Deferred

Federal 16132 7237 52369

State 1150 878 3387

Total deferred 17282 8115 55756

Total income tax expense $56929 $29898 $52114
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Income tax expense for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 differs from amounts computed by

applying the applicable U.S federal income tax rate as follows

2012 2011 2010

Computed expected income tax expense $54831 $30749 $48657

State income tax expense 4122 2441 3478

Domestic Production Activity Deduction 2695 1190 595
Settlements of tax matters 2972

Other 671 870 574

Total income tax expense $56929 $29898 $52114

Effective income tax rate 36.3% 34.0% 37.5%

Significant components of Belos deferred tax liabilities and assets as of December 31 2012 and 2011 are as follows

2012 2011

Deferred tax liabilities

Excess tax amortization $298959 $284257

Excess tax depreciation 10159 12105

Expenses deductible for tax purposes in year different from the year

accrued 22295 16507

Total deferred tax liabilities 331413 312869

Deferred tax assets

Accrued pension liability 50658 47030

Deferred compensation and benefits 12409 11174

State taxes 6656 6254

Net operating losses state 5614 5664

Expenses deductible for tax purposes in year different from the
year

accrued 3190 3383

Other 2058 2239

Deferred tax assets 80585 75744

Valuation allowance for deferred taxes 5614 5664
Total deferred tax assets net 74971 70080

Net deferred tax liability $256442 $242789

In 2007 Belo applied for change in accounting method with the Internal Revenue Service IRS related to the

deduction of amortization expense associated with certain intangibles In November of 2010 the Company received

consent letter from the IRS approving the change in accounting method and subsequently filed an amendment to

its 2007 federal tax return The IRS completed its final review in 2011 and the Company received the tax refund of

$31615 inJanuary 2012

The Company has identified as major taxjurisdictions as defined in ASC 740-10 its federal income tax return and

its state income tax returns in five states The Companys federal income tax returns for the years ended

December 31 2007 through December 31 2008 have been closed except for certain net operating loss carry-back

provisions related to the tax matters agreement with Belo The Companys federal income tax returns for the

years subsequent to December 31 2008 remain subject to examination During 2011 the Company resolved various

refund claims and other matters with tax authorities The Companys income tax returns in major state income tax

jurisdictions remain subject to examination for various periods subsequent to December 31 2006

As of December 31 2012 the Company has cumulative deferred taxes from state taxable net operating losses of

$5614 These net operating losses can be carried forward to offset future taxable income and are expected to be

used and/or will expire between 2013 and 2024

In the
year

ended December 31 2011 the Company received satisfactory resolution of certain tax matters which

resulted in reduction in tax expense
of $2972
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The table below summarizes the change in reserve for uncertain tax positions excluding related accrued interest

and penalties

2012 2011

Balance atJanuary 888 4248

Increases in tax positions for prior years 255

Decreases in tax positions for prior years 351
Settlements with taxing authorities 3615

Balance at end of year
537 888

The entire reserve for uncertain tax positions of $537 and $888 as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

would affect the Companys effective tax rate if and when recognized in future years
The Company recognizes

interest and penalty charges related to the reserve for uncertain tax positions as interest expense No interest and

penalties were recognized for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 The Company has no accrued interest

or penalties as of December 31 2012 or 2011

Note 14 Commitments

The Company has entered into commitments for broadcast rights that are not currently available for broadcast and

are therefore not recorded in the financial statements Broadcast rights and programming also include estimates for

reverse compensation to be paid to networks to the extent contracts are in place In addition the Company has

contractual obligations for capital expenditures that primarily relate to television broadcast facilities The table

below summarizes the following specified commitments of the Company as of December 31 2012

Nature of Commitment Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Broadcast rights and programming 83850 $40499 $28191 $8197 $1668 $1403 3892

Capital expenditures
and licenses 3421 3421

Non-cancelable operating leases 17803 2426 1686 1348 1158 1117 10068

Total $105074 $46346 $29877 $9545 $2826 $2520 $13960

Broadcast rights and programming Includes broadcast rights for both syndicated programs that have been deliv

ered and are available for broadcasting as well as programs that have not yet
been produced Also includes amounts

fixed or currently accrued under network affiliation agreements and excludes variable amounts payable under

network affiliation agreements where estimates are less certain

Total lease expense for property
and equipment was $4315 $5093 and $5320 in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Note 15 Contingent Liabilities

On October 24 2006 18 former employees of The Dallas Morning News filed lawsuit against The Dallas Morning

News the Company and others in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas The plaintiffs

lawsuit mainly consisted of claims of unlawful discrimination and ERISA violations On March 28 2011 the District

Court granted
defendants summaryjudgment and dismissed all claims OnJuly 15 2011 the plaintiffs appealed the

decision to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit On August 20 2012 the Fifth Circuit affirmed

the District Courts decision Plaintiffs time to seek review by the Supreme Court has since expired Therefore

the summary judgment has been affirmed and all claims dismissed

Various legal proceedings are pending against the Company including matters relating to alleged libel and/or

defamation In the opinion of management liabilities if any arising from these other legal proceedings would not

have material adverse effect on the consolidated results of operations liquidity or financial condition of the

Company
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Note 16 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31 2012 is as fol

lows

2012 2011 2010

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid net of amounts capitalized $68051 $68607 $71993

Income taxes paid net of refunds 8448 $26983 $26061

Note 17 Quarterly Results of Operations unaudited

Following is summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years
ended December 31 2012 and

2011 Certain previously reported information has been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation

2012 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Net operating revenues $155898 $177619 $176273 $204929

Operating costs and expenses

Station salaries wages and employee benefits 55699 56437 54776 57436

Station programming and other operating costs 45317 48074 50520 53884

Corporate operating costs 7732 8550 7501 9610

Depreciation 7462 7472 7528 7641

Total operating costs and expenses 116210 120533 120325 128571

Other income expense net 501 1378 497 5092
Interest expense 17662 17714 17683 16646
Income tax

expense 8235 14917 14148 19629

Net earnings 14292 25833 24614 34991

Less Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 98 203 139
Net earnings attributable to Belo Corp 14292 25931 24817 35130

Basic earnings per
share 0.14 0.24 0.24 0.34

Dilutedearningspershare 0.14 0.24 0.24 0.34

2011 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Net operating revenues $151470 $166379 $151999 $180294

Operating costs and expenses

Station salaries wages and employee benefits 53836 54525 52467 54033

Station programming and other operating costs 50196 52565 51788 50424

Corporate operating costs 6299 6692 5112 7235

Pension settlement charge and contribution reimbursements 20466

Depreciation 7924 7707 7614 7551

Total operating costs and expenses 138721 121489 116981 119243

Other income net 180 649 986 4726

Interest expense 17983 18050 17771 18589
Income tax expense benefit 740 9402 4520 16716

Net earnings loss 4314 18087 13713 30472

Basic earnings loss per share 0.04 0.17 0.13 0.29

Diluted earnings loss per
share 0.04 0.17 0.13 0.29
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As indicated in Note the Companys presentation of total comprehensive income for the year ended December

31 2011 has been revised to include the recognition of an $85222 credit related to its Pension Plan split with A.H

Belo The $85222 credit was appropriately recorded as component of accumulated other comprehensive loss and

recognized in total equity for all periods presented but was excluded in 2011 from the subtotal of total compre
hensive income Additionally in the presentation of the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive

Income within the Companys 2012 Forms 1O-Q total comprehensive income from comparative 2011 periods also

excluded the $85222 Pension Plan item revised presentation of 2011 total comprehensive income is as follows

Three Months Ended

March 31 2011

4314
442

Six Months Ended

June 30 2011

$13773

884

Nine Months Ended

September 30 2011

27486

1325

This revised presentation had no effect on the Companys 2012 Forms 10-Q Consolidated Condensed Balance

Sheets Consolidated Condensed Statements of Earnings or Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for

any period presented and the Companys total shareholders equity was not affected

Net earnings loss

Amortization of net actuarial loss net of tax

Pension funded status adjustment net of tax

Split of Pension Plan with Belo 85222 85222 85222

Total comprehensive income $81350 $99879 $114033
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Exhibit 31.1

Section 302 Certification

Dunia Shive President and Chief Executive Officer of Belo Corp certify that

have reviewed this annual
report on Form 10-K of Belo Corp

Based on my knowledge this
report does not contain

any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and
have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli

ability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the regis
trants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and
report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have sig
nificant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2013

/s/ Dunia Shive

Dunia Shive

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Section 302 Certification

Carey Hendrickson Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Belo Corp certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Belo Corp

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrne statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented
in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules lSa-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules L3a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and

have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period
in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli

ability of financial reporting
and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting
that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal
quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter

in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting
and

The registrants
other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the regis

trants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process
summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have sig

nificant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2013

/s/ Carey Hendrickson

Carey Hendrickson

Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Belo Corp the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report the

undersigned Dunia Shive President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Carey Hendrickson

Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company each hereby certifies pursuant to 18

U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

/s/ Dunia Shive

Dunia Shive

President and Chief Executive Officer

March 2013

/s/ Carey Hendrickson

Carey Hendrickson

Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

March 2013
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Ernst Young LLP

Dallas Texas
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Computershare

Box 43006

Providence RI 02940-3006

Phone 866-210-7801
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